decided to take as urgent.

vl

Report by

Director of
Corporate
Resources

Director of
Corporate
Resources

Director of
Corporate
Resources

Director of
Corporate
Resources

Meeting: Local Pension Board
Date/Time: Monday, 3 October 2016 at 9.30 am
Location: Goscote Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield.
Contact: Matthew Hand (0116 305 6038)
Email: matthew.hand@leics.gov.uk
AGENDA
ltem

1. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2016.

2. Question Time.

3.  Questions asked by members under Standing
Order 7(3) and 7(5).

4. To advise of any other items which the
Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

5. Declarations of interest in respect of items on
the agenda.

6. Risk Management and Internal Controls.

7.  Pension Fund Administration - April to June
2016 Quarter.

8. Pension Fund Governance and Administration.

9. Requests for Admission Body Status.

10. Any other items which the Chairman has

Leicestershire
County Council

(Pages 3 -4)

(Pages 5 - 6)

(Pages 7 - 14)

(Pages 15 - 108)

(Pages 109 -
110)

Democratic Services ° Chief Executive’s Department ° Leicestershire County Council - County Hall
Glenfield - Leicestershire ° LE3 8RA ° Tel: 0116 232 3232 - Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk

g www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy n www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy www.leics.gov.uk/local democracy



mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.facebook.com/LeicsDemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy

11. Date of Next Meeting.

Thursday 8 December at 10.00am

TO:

Employer representatives

Mr. D. Jennings CC
Mr. A. M. Kershaw CC
Clir. D. Alfonso

Employee representatives

Ms. D. Haller
Ms. A. Severn — Morrell
Mrs. D. Stobbs



55.

56.

S7.

58.

59.

60.

3 Agenda ltem 1

H Leicestershire
County Council
Minutes of a meeting of the Local Pension Board held at County Hall, Glenfield on
Tuesday, 19 July 2016.
PRESENT
Mr. D. Jennings CC (in the Chair)
Clir. D. Alfonso Ms. A. Severn - Morrell

Ms. D. Haller

Minutes of the previous meeting.

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2016 were taken as read, confirmed and
signed.

Question Time.

The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order
35.

Questions asked by members.

The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order
7(3) and 7(5).

Urgent Items.
There were no items for consideration.

Declarations of interest.

The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of
items on the agenda for the meeting. No declarations were made.

Annual Benefit Statements.

The Board considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which provided
members with an update concerning the progress made towards the Pension Section’s
requirement to produce the annual benefit statements for all the Fund’s members by 31
August 2016. A copy of the report marked ‘6’ is filed with these minutes.

The Director reported that over 170 of the 201 employers within the Scheme had
provided the required information which would enable accurate annual benefit statements
to be produced. The Section continued to work closely with the remaining employers in
order to obtain the data before the deadline.

The Board welcomed the update and recognised the good work of the Pension Section
which would result in the majority, if not all of the scheme’s employers being able to meet
the required timeframe.



61.

62.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

Request for Admission Body Status.

The Board considered a report from the Director of Corporate Resources which provided
an update concerning a small number of the Fund’s members whose employment had
been transferred to a private employer. A copy of the report marked ‘7’ is filed with these
minutes.

The Director reported that whilst progress was being made with the outstanding pension
transfers at Winstanley Community Academy, the two unresolved agreements with David
Ross Educational Trust run schools were no nearer a conclusion despite officer’s best
efforts and a letter explaining the issues being sent to the chair of governors of both
schools.

The Board expressed its concern over the delay and welcomed proposed changes to
government legislation currently being considered which would result in employees not
being able to transfer from a fund employer to a private company until formal pension
arrangements had been established.

In response to questions from members, The Director confirmed that the Pensions
Regulator was aware of the issue and a further letter would be sent to David Ross
Educational Trust reaffirming the urgent need for the agreements to be formalised. The
lead member for finance and resources, Mr J.B. Rhodes CC, would also be made aware
of the delay.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

Date of next meeting.

RESOLVED:

That officers be requested to determine an alternative date and time for the next meeting
of the Local Pension Board and publicise the date on the County Council’s website.

9.30 - 10.10 am CHAIRMAN
19 July 2016



5 enda Iltem 6

Leicestershire
County Council

LOCAL PENSION BOARD
3 OCTOBER 2016

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Purpose of the Report

To inform the Board of a requirement for a report concerning risk management and
internal controls to be a standing item on every Pension Board agenda as stipulated
in the Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice.

Background

In April 2015 The Pension Regulator (TPR) published its code of practise on
governance and administration of public service pension schemes. This introduced a
number of areas pension administrators need to record and pension Board members
should be aware of.

One area within the code is risk, more specifically ‘risk management and internal
controls’, which the code states should be a standing item on each Pension Board
and Pension Committee agenda.

The Leicestershire Fund already manages risk and has a risk register in place that is
regularly reviewed by officers and presented to the Local Pension Board annually.
Internal and external audit also consider risks within Pensions and highlight any risk
concerns. However, in order to comply with the code the Director of Finance has
agreed to have this as a standard item on both agendas.

Identified Risks

There are currently no identified risks
Recommendation

The Board is asked to note the report.
Equality and Human Rights Implications

None specific

Officers to Contact

Ian Howe — Pensions Manager - telephone (0116) 305 6945
Chris Tambini - Director of Finance - telephone (0116) 305 6199



This page is intentionally left blank



/ Agenda Item 7

H Leicestershire
County Council

LOCAL PENSION BOARD

3 OCTOBER 2016

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES

PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION REPORT — APRIL TO JUNE 2016 QUARTER

Purpose of the Report

1. To inform the Board of relevant issues in the administration of Fund benefits,
including the performance of the Pensions Section against its Performance
Indicators.

Background

2. The Pensions Section is responsible for the administration of Local
Government Pension Scheme benefits of the Leicestershire Pension Fund’s
85,000+ members.

Performance Indicators

3. Attached as Appendix A to this report are the performance indicators for the
Pensions Section, which form part of the Section’s Service Plan and have
been agreed by the Director of Finance. These indicators are split into 2 broad
categories — how quickly processes are carried out and how customers feel
they have been kept informed and treated by staff.

Performance of Pensions Section

4. The results for the April to June 2016 quarter show that customer satisfaction
remains very high and overall performance figures remain positive in the
quarter.



10.

Administration

Annual Benefit Statements

Annual benefit statements for 25,171 preserved members and 30,853 active
members were completed by the statutory deadline of the 31 August 2016.

Valuation
The Pension Section completed work for the Fund valuation by the 31 July
2016 deadline. The Fund Actuary is working through the results with initial

results expected towards the end of 2016.

General Workloads

Because significant resource had to be directed onto annual benefit
statements and valuation some work areas have naturally built up since
March 2016. The two significant areas of increased backlogs are interfund
transfers (pension transfers between Local Government Funds) and
guaranteed minimum pensions. These areas are being worked through to
clear these backlogs. There are no detrimental impacts on scheme members
pension benefits caused by backlogs in these two areas.

Consultation — Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations

The Pension Section has replied to the consultation on the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and Local Government Pension Scheme
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014. A copy
of the reply is attached as Appendix B.

The final regulations are now expected.

Recommendation

The Board is asked to note the report.

Equality and Human Rights Implications

None specific

Appendices

Appendix A — Quarterly Results — April to June 2016
Appendix B — Leicestershire Pension Fund’s reply to the consultation.

Officers to Contact

lan Howe — Pensions Manager - telephone (0116) 305 6945
Chris Tambini — Director of Finance - telephone (0116) 305 6199



Quarter - April to June 2016

This Previous

Quarter

Target

Business Process Perspective

quarter

APPENDIX A

Customer Perspective - Feedback

Target

This

Quarter

Previous
Quarter

Retirement Benefits notified to members within Establish members understanding of info

10 working days of paperwork received 92% | 98% |A| 96% |provided-rated atleast mainly ok or clear 95% | 98% |[A| 100%

Pension payments made within 10 working days Experience of dealing with Section - rated at

of receiving election 95% | 94% 84% |least good or excellent 95% 93% 93%

Death benefits/payments sent to dependant Establish members thoughts on the amount of

within 10 working days of noftification 90% | 81% |[VY| 82% |infoprovided-rated as about right 92% | 95% |A| 98%
Establish the way members are treated -
rated as polite or extremely polite 97% | 100% [A| 100%
Email response - understandable 95% | 95% |A| 93%

Good or better than target A Email response - content detail 92% | 96% |A| 93%
Email response - timeliness 92% | 97% |A| 93%

Close to target

Below target v




This page is intentionally left blank



11
APPENDIX B

ﬁ:? Lelcestm s
WL County Councii

Vincent Kiddell _

Workforce, Pay and Penslons Date: July 2016

DOLG My Ref: PEN/IH

SE Quarter fry Bullding 22'::122: [GRIHGWE

2 Marsham Sireet Phone: 0116 305 6945
;‘\:Vn](:o:DF. Emalk Jan.howe@lelcs.gov.uk
Dear Mr Kiddeill

Local Government Pension Scheme Amendment Regulations
Consultation — Leicestershire Pensicn Fund

I write on behgif of the Leicestershire Local Government Pension Fund in reply to the
consultation on The Local Govemment Pension Scheme {Amendment) Regulations

2016.

In general terms we support the proposed changes as detailed in the consultation
but there are a small number of peints we would like to raise, as detailed below:

The Fair Deqi proposals — Draft Regqulation 3. 4, 5

Wae support the recommendation to safeguard member's benefits but we have
concemn about the process for employers becoming admission bodies in the Local
Government Pension Scheme.

Within the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations and the Pensions Act,
there appears to be fittle or no power that Pension Funds can apply on the new
employer fo enforce them to complete the admission agreement and bond
documents prior to the staff transferring. If the staff transfer over before the legal
documents are in piace the Fund really has nothing It can use to ensure the
employer then completes the agreements “after the event”, creating a significant
risk to the members who transferred.

without the documents in place the employer is not an employer of the Pension
Fund and cannot therefore deduct pension contributions and pay these to the
Fund. Whilst the intention is for admission agreements to then be "backdated"” to the
date of transfer it crecates- significant risk if any of the staff die or refire in the
intervening period [between date of transfer and date of signature of the
documents).

Poasier dore Cupnly Caeclh Ferm sin e ive
Loanty Holl, Giennets, lmut.') weslurs d i 3 BRil

Eagnl. proves ism, B,

ST R S T

uaans Ruberly, A, Larosticy oo € ompaosntss R0 fifut &

Readitan s O oonetl, Ao lata! D olonp COLADMIen Seawh o i ol “hre slicn il




12

|

-r -\-\.I——-
LWy

*;,l- Leicestershire
T County Councii

We understand that this Is anssue for a number of local authority pension funds, so
in parts of the couniry employees pay slips show reductions for contributions to a
local authority pension scheme, but in reality they are not members of that scheme.

From a Local Authority perspective we have few powers to make employers agree
admisston agreements. We think consideration should be given to ensure Local
Govemnment Pension Scheme legisiation changes to require all legal documents
and the guearantor/bond must be signed by all partfies and be in place, before the
staff transfer.

Main Points - Changes to the 2013 Scheme Regulations

In principle we support the changes designed to Improve a number of technical
issues in the current regulations. We have only commented on the particular points
In your consultation document where we feel further consideration is required.

Point 7 — Droft Regulation 8 and 9

We support the principle that members have more flexibility around how they use
their AVCs to meet the aims of Government's pension reform “Freedom and
Choice". However, we want to ensure the reguiations aliow all AVC payers (both pre
and post 1 April 2014 cases) have the same rights for consistency and to help
alleviate pre 1 April 2014 preserved members with small AVC pots having to use
these to buy annuities In future. We feel pre 1 April 2014 preserved members should
have the opportunity to use their AVC pots as pension income via Pension scheme
benefils therefore providing parity with post 1 April 2014 preserved members. We
understand the Prudenticl, the Leicestershire Fund AVC provider, are considering the
proposal and will also reply to the consultation,

Pgint 8 — Draft Regulation 10
This does cause us some concems. We are not clear what this is designed to resolve.

We do not feel members who are off sick ore'likely to increase their pay, just prior to
going off on sick, ta "falsely increase” the pay used in the period used to calculate
assumed pensionable pay used in their il health pension calculafion.

That said we certainly do not feel this should be an employer discretion, given that
some employers may choose to use this differently to others. For faimess and
consistency we feel this has fo be a Fund decision.

Point 10— Draft Regulation 11

We sfrongly support the move back to having the default option as separate with
the member having the option 1o aggregate within 12 months. We recommend this
change is not retrospective.

Point 14 - Draft Regulation 15

We support this principle but we are concermed that potentially Funds could make
payment back to the exifing employer only to find in the near future the employer is
then in deficit.

Loonastil bt Cetialy Sonin g Fenshans deing

Lonwy Hall, Glennai 2 Jecesterthira Lo 4B

Frvonde b morppnbae :‘-'-' lzl

Wl v ey pov b e s cdune

Qe b0z Rain s, CPFAL Dircctor ol Cn: poeite ResLUnLs

Russdua ks k€Y Crzaron, Ausnt B LLpocton Cosiemes Ssrvics s sial Gratitaam,




13

B X
P Leicestershire
Ry County Councit

Therefore flexibility should be included in the regulations so In the “fullness of fime" if
a credit remains and is Ikely to remain, the Fund ¢an decide to pay the credit back
o the exited -emplo_yer.' We do not feel we need the employer's agreement.

Points 16 and 17 - Draft Regulations 17, 18, 19

In general we accept the terms of the Public Sector Club. However we have
concemns about the process used when factors change in the use of fransfers. We
would request that if factors are changed there is a period of fime before the factors
become “live” to provide opportunity for Funds and system providers 1o interpret
and implement the changes to avoid the issue of stockplling transfers given the issue
this can cause. We would suggest a 3 month window which supports the 3 month
guarantee period for transfers,

Point 22, 23 - Draft Regulation 24

We support the proposal to allow all pre 1 April 2014 preserved members the option
to take actuarially reduced benefits from age 55 without the need for their previous
employers consent, given that there Is no cost to the employer. We have no view on
how this might be achieved.

Point 25 - Draft Regulation 25

We oppose this change given the underpin would provide protection for people
who transfer into the LGPS from another public service pension scheme but were
never in the LGPS final salary section. This would cause significant administrative
burden establishing the individuals to whom this would apply, the fact the protection
may provide greater level of protection then the individual would have received in
their former scheme, and that this refrospective protection was not initially factored
into the scheme design.

Yours sincerely

lan Howe
Pensions Manager

Lastiow sp@tadarn 8oeatidye sl Permni st Reectian

woury Hafl, Liznhaid, Lacsstoriere {e < ~Gi

Froaide praarcdeanst - Kawt vap ik

Wi, wiviedsonaion ol foans ot

Brudr Ranoits, CUTA, Dlvcens of o ey Poso oLn

Rodinck OFC e, Avdadand Paestor QUstonen Sorace yh 2« liois




14



15 Agenda Iltem 8

H Leicestershire
County Council

LOCAL PENSION BOARD

3 OCTOBER 2016

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES

PENSION FUND GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

Purpose of the Report

1. To inform the Board of governance and administration arrangements for the
Local Government Pension Scheme.

Background

2. The Public Services Pensions Act 2013 introduced a framework for the regulatory
oversight of governance and administration of public service pension schemes by
The Pensions Regulator (TPR).

3. In April 2015 TPR published its code of practise on governance and
administration of public service pension scheme. This introduced a number of
areas pension administrators need to record and Pension Board members should
be aware of. A copy of the code of Conduct is included as Appendix A.

4. To monitor Leicestershire Pension Funds compliance against the code the
Fund’s Actuary has developed a governance scorecard. TPR appreciates there
may not be full compliance in all areas but the scorecard highlights areas which
require improvement and records where changes have been made. The
Scorecard is included as Appendix B.

Specific Governance Areas

Risk Reqister

5. The Pensions Manager and Investment Manager maintain a combined pension
and investment risk register, the latest version of which is attached as Appendix
C.

Documents for Local Board Members

6. Inthe code Pension Board Members must have knowledge and understanding of
scheme rules, documents recording scheme administration policies and pension



16

law. Much of this knowledge and understanding comes from The Pension
Regulators e-learning programme supported by the Pension Section.

7. The latest scheme rules are ‘The Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013’. These are available online and a link to these regulations is
provided below;

http://www.lgpsregs.org/index.php/regs-leqislation/timeline-requlations-2014

8. Administration documents or processes Board Members need to be aware of are
listed as follows;

Conflicts of interest

9. Conflicts of interest are a standing item on the Local Pension Board agenda
and any interests are recorded accordingly.

Record keeping

10.The Pension Section has a number of office notes and processes that colleagues
follow. This is supported by the Altair administration system that has a number of
workflows that record notes to ensure all records are accurately maintained,
allowing for the accurate and timely production of annual benefit statements and
valuation data.

11.There are certain data fields that defined benefit schemes have to hold under
Record-keeping Regulations. To administer the Local Government Pension
Scheme successfully, the Pension Section holds much greater information than
the legislation stipulates.

Internal dispute resolution

12.Should a scheme member have an issue or complaint that cannot be resolved
informally there is an appeal process the member can follow, called the internal
dispute resolution procedure. This was detailed in the training provided to Local
Pension Board members on the 16 June 2016.

Reporting breaches

13.The Pension Section maintains a breaches log and has a procedure for reporting
breaches of the law to The Pensions Regulator. There has been no County
Council material breaches recorded. However, recording of non-material
breaches are still recorded so if similar breaches continue they may become
material. This is attached as Appendix D.

Maintaining contributions

14.The Fund’s employers pay pension contributions each month and these are
recorded. At year-end the contributions are reconciled to the employer year-end


http://www.lgpsregs.org/index.php/regs-legislation/timeline-regulations-2014

17

return and the members individual contributions are uploaded to their Altair
pension record.

Training Log

15.There is a requirement for members of the Local Pension Board to have
knowledge and understanding of scheme rules, documents recording scheme
administration policies and pension law. Whilst much of this knowledge and
understanding can be developed using the Pension Regulators e-learning
programme, members are also invited to attend training sessions throughout the
year. The Pensions Manager maintains the Local Pension Board training log
which details key areas which members have explored and areas which are still
outstanding. A copy of the log is attached as Appendix E.

Recommendation

16.The Board is asked to note this report.

Equal Opportunities Implications

None specific

Appendix

Appendix A — The Pension Regulator Governance and administration of public
service pension schemes

Appendix B — Code of practise compliance score card
Appendix C — Risk register

Appendix D — Procedure for Recording Breaches of the Law to the Pensions
Regulator

Appendix E — Local Pension Board training log

Officers to Contact

lan Howe — Pensions Manager - telephone (0116) 305 6945
Chris Tambini — Director of Finance - telephone (0116) 305 6199



This page is intentionally left blank



19

Code of practice no. 14

Governance and
administration

of public service
pension schemes

The Pensions
April 2015 Regulator



20



21

The Pensions
Regulator

Code of practice no. 14

Governance and administration of
public service pension schemes

Presented to Parliament pursuant to Section 91(5) of the Pensions Act 2004
Draft to lie before Parliament for forty days, during which time either House may resolve that the
code be not made.

Presented to the Northern Ireland Assembly pursuant to Article 86(5) of the Pensions (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005

Draft to lie before the Northern Ireland Assembly for ten days on which the Assembly has sat or
thirty calendar days whichever period is the longer, during which time the Assembly may resolve
that the code be not made.

12 January 2015



22

Code of practice no. 14
Governance and administration of public service pension schemes

© The Pensions Regulator April 2015

The text of this document (this excludes, where present, the Royal Arms
and all departmental or agency logos) may be reproduced free of charge
in any format or medium provided that it is reproduced accurately and
not in a misleading context.

The material must be acknowledged as The Pensions Regulator’s copyright
and the document title specified. Where third party material has been
identified, permission from the respective copyright holder must be sought.

Any enquiries related to this publication should be sent to us at:
customersupport@tpr.gov.uk

We can produce it in Braille, large print or on audio tape. We can also
produce it in other languages.



23

Contents

page
Introduction 6
Status of codes of practice 6
This code of practice 6
At whom is this code directed? 7
Terms used in this code 8
How to use this code 10
Northern Ireland 11
Governing your scheme 12
Knowledge and understanding required by pension board members 12
Conflicts of interest and representation 17
Publishing information about schemes 25
Managing risks 27
Internal controls 27
Administration 32
Scheme record-keeping 32
Maintaining contributions 37
Providing information to members 44
Resolving issues 51
Internal dispute resolution 51
Reporting breaches of the law 56
Appendix: Corresponding Northern Ireland legislation 64

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



24

Introduction

This code of practice is issued by The Pensions Regulator (‘the
regulator’), the body that regulates occupational and personal
pension schemes provided through employers.

1

The regulator’s statutory objectives' are to:

e  protect the benefits of pension scheme members
e  reduce the risks of calls on the Pension Protection Fund (PPF)

®  promote, and improve understanding of, the good
administration of work-based pension schemes

*  maximise compliance with the duties and safeguards of the
Pensions Act 2008

*  minimise any adverse impact on the sustainable growth of an
employer (in relation to the exercise of the regulator’s functions
under Part 3 of the Pensions Act 2004 only).

The regulator has a number of regulatory tools, including issuing
codes of practice, to enable it to meet its statutory objectives.

Codes of practice provide practical guidance in relation to the
exercise of functions under relevant pensions legislation and set out
the standards of conduct and practice expected from those who

exercise those functions?.

Status of codes of practice

5.

Codes of practice are not statements of the law and there is no
penalty for failing to comply with them. It is not necessary for

all the provisions of a code of practice to be followed in every
circumstance. Any alternative approach to that appearing in the
code of practice will nevertheless need to meet the underlying legal
requirements, and a penalty may be imposed if these requirements
are not met. When determining whether the legal requirements
have been met, a court or tribunal must take any relevant provisions
of a code of practice into account?.

If there are grounds to issue an improvement notice?, the regulator
may issue a notice directing a person to take, or refrain from taking,
such steps as are specified in the notice. These directions may be

worded by reference to a code of practice issued by the regulator?.

This code of practice

7.

The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (the 2013 Act) introduces the
framework for the governance and administration of public service
pension schemes and provides an extended regulatory oversight by
the regulator.

1
Section 5(1) of the
Pensions Act 2004.

2
Section 90A(1), ibid.

3
Section 90A(5), ibid.

4

Where the regulator
considers that legal
requirements are not
being met, or have
been contravened in
circumstances which
make it likely that the
breach will continue
or be repeated, it may
issue an improvement
notice under s13 of the
Pensions Act 2004.

5
Section 13(3) of the
Pensions Act 2004.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes °



25

Introduction

10.

The regulator is required to issue one or more codes of practice
covering specific matters relating to public service pension
schemes®. This code of practice sets out the legal requirements for
public service pension schemes in respect of those specific matters.
It contains practical guidance and sets out standards of conduct
and practice expected of those who exercise functions in relation to
those legal requirements.

The practical guidance sections in this code are not intended to
prescribe the process for every scenario. They do, however, provide
principles, examples and benchmarks against which scheme
managers and members of pension boards can consider whether
or not they have understood their duties and obligations and are
reasonably complying with them.

If scheme managers and the members of pension boards are, for
any reason, unable to act in accordance with the guidance set out

in this code, or an alternative approach that meets the underlying
requirements, they should consider their statutory duty under
section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 to assess and if necessary report
breaches of the law’. For further information, see the section of this
code on ‘Reporting breaches of the law’.

At whom is this code directed?

11.

12.

This code relates to public service pension schemes within the
meaning of the Pensions Act 20048, These are schemes established
under the 2013 Act, new public body pension schemes and other
statutory pension schemes which are connected to those schemes.
It does not apply to schemes in the wider public sector, nor to any
scheme which is excluded from being a public service pension
scheme within the meaning of the Pensions Act 2004.

This code is particularly directed at scheme managers and the
members of pension boards of public service pension schemes

and connected schemes. Scheme managers must comply with
various legal requirements relating to the governance, management
and administration of public service pension schemes. Pension
boards must also comply with certain legal requirements, including

assisting scheme managers in relation to securing compliance
Sting gers! ! uring compi Section 90A() of the

with scheme regulations and other legislation relating to the Pensions Act 2004,
governance and administration of the scheme, any requirements

of the regulator and with any other matters specified in scheme 7

regulations. The role, responsibilities and duties of pension boards Section 70, ibid.
will vary. Where pension boards are not directly responsible for

undertaking particular activities, they remain accountable for 8

assisting the scheme manager in securing compliance with the Section 318, ibid.

scheme regulations and other legislation relating to the governance

and administration of the scheme, any requirements of the 7

. ,anyreq ) ) Section 5 of the Public
regulator and with any other matters for which they are responsible Service Pensions Act
under the scheme regulations’. 2013.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



26

Introduction

13.

14.

15.

16.

In addition, the legal requirement to report breaches of the law
under section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 applies to other persons
involved in public service pension schemes, so this code is also
directed at them.

Scheme managers and pension boards (where relevant) may be
able to delegate some activities to others, or outsource them,
although they will not be able to delegate their accountability

for complying with a legal requirement imposed on them. This
code should therefore be followed by anyone to whom activities
relating to the legal requirements covered by this code have been
delegated or outsourced.

Employers participating in public service pension schemes will also
find the code a useful source of reference. The role and actions of
employers can be critical in enabling scheme managers to meet
certain legal requirements 0,

Public service pension schemes are established primarily as defined
benefit (DB) schemes. Some of these schemes also enable members
to make additional voluntary contributions (AVCs) on either a DB
basis or to a separate defined contribution (DC) scheme. There are
also some DC schemes which are offered as alternatives to the DB
schemes. This code applies to any DC scheme which is a public
service pension scheme within the meaning of the Pensions Act 2004.

Terms used in this code

17.

18.

The 2013 Act — the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, which sets
out the arrangements for the creation of schemes for the payment
of pensions and other benefits. It provides powers to ministers

to create such schemes according to a common framework of
requirements.

Public service pension schemes'! — these are (a) new public service
pension schemes set up under section 1 of the 2013 Act (including
any scheme which has effect as such a scheme'?); (b) new public
body pension schemes (within the meaning of the 2013 Act) and (c)
any statutory pension schemes connected with a scheme described
in (a) or (b). Substantially, these are the schemes providing pension
benefits for civil servants, the judiciary, local government workers,
teachers, health service workers, fire and rescue workers, members
of police forces and the armed forces. Except where specified
otherwise, the legal requirements and practical guidance set out

in this code apply to any kind of public service pension scheme
within the meaning of the Pensions Act 2004, whether it is a scheme
established under section 1 of the 2013 Act, a new public body
scheme or a connected scheme.

10

Employers participating
in occupational public
service pension schemes
are under a statutory
duty to report breaches
of the law under s70 of
the Pensions Act 2004.

11

As defined in s318 of
the Pensions Act 2004.
Under s318(6) of that
Act, a scheme which
would otherwise fall
within the definition of
‘public service pension
scheme' in the Pensions
Act 2004 does not do
so if it is a scheme
providing only for
injury or compensation
benefits (or both), or

if it is specified in an
order made under that
section.

12
Section 28 of the 2013
Act.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



27

Introduction

19.

20.

21.

22.

Connected scheme — a scheme established under section 1 of the
2013 Act and another statutory pension scheme, or a new public
body pension scheme and another statutory pension scheme are
connected if and to the extent that the schemes make provision in
relation to persons of the same description. Scheme regulations
may specify exceptionsB.

Responsible authority — the 2013 Act identifies secretaries of state/
ministers, each being the responsible authority for their schemes,
who have power to make the scheme regulations for the relevant
schemes'®. The responsible authority may also be the scheme
manager'>. In relation to a public body pension scheme, references

in the code to the responsible authority are to be read as references

to the public authority which established the scheme.

Scheme regulations — each new scheme made under section 1 of
the 2013 Act has scheme regulations which set out the detail of
the membership and benefits to be provided under the scheme1°.
The regulations must identify scheme managers and provide for
the establishment of pension boards and scheme advisory boards.
These regulations constitute the main rules of the scheme. In
addition to the scheme regulations, the rules of a scheme include:

e certain legislative provisions, to the extent that they override
provisions of the scheme regulations, or which have effect in
relation to a scheme and are not otherwise reflected in the
scheme regulations, and

®  any provision which the scheme regulations do not contain but
which the scheme rules must contain if it is to conform with the
requirements of Chapter 1 of Part 4 of the Pension Schemes
Act 1993 (preservation of benefit under occupational pension
schemes)!’.

Some connected schemes and new public body pension schemes

will not be established by regulations, so references in the code to

scheme regulations should be read as references to the rules of the

scheme in these cases.

Scheme manager — each public service pension scheme has one
or more persons responsible for managing or administering the
scheme8. Public service pension schemes can have different
persons acting as scheme manager for different parts of the
pension scheme. For the locally administered schemes'?, the
scheme managers may be the local administering authorities or a
person representing an authority or police force.

13
Section 4(6) and (7) of
the 2013 Act.

14
Section 2 and Schedule
2, ibid.

15
Section 4(3), ibid.

16
Section 3 and Schedule
3, ibid.

17
Section 318(2) of the
Pensions Act 2004.

18
Section 4 and s30 of the
2013 Act.

19

Locally administered
schemes include the
schemes for England,
and Wales, and Scotland
for local government
workers, and England
and Wales for fire and
rescue workers and
members of police
forces.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes o



28

Introduction

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Pension board — the scheme manager (or each scheme manager)
for a scheme has a pension board?? with responsibility for assisting
the scheme manager to comply with the scheme regulations and
other legislation relating to the governance and administration of
the scheme and any requirements imposed by the regulator. The
pension board must also assist the scheme manager with such other
matters as the scheme regulations may specify. It will be for scheme
regulations and the scheme manager to determine precisely what
the pension board's role, responsibilities and duties entail.

Scheme advisory board — each DB public service pension scheme
has a scheme advisory board?! with responsibility for providing
advice on the desirability of changes to the scheme, when
requested to do so by the responsible authority (or otherwise, in
accordance with scheme regulations). Where there is more than one
scheme manager the scheme regulations may also provide for the
scheme advisory board to provide advice (on request or otherwise)
to the scheme managers or the scheme’s pension boards on the
effective and efficient administration and management of the
scheme or any pension fund of the scheme.

Schemes - in this code the term ‘schemes’ is used throughout
where actions to comply with a legal requirement, standard or
expectation may be carried out by the scheme manager, pension
board or by another person(s) including those to whom activities
have been delegated or outsourced. The scheme manager or
pension board will be ultimately accountable, depending upon to
whom the legal obligation applies under the legislation.

Must — in this code the term ‘must’ is used where there is a legal
requirement.

Should - in this code the term ‘should’ is used to refer to practical
guidance and the standards expected by the regulator.

How to use this code

28.

29.

30.

The code is structured as a reference for scheme managers and
pension boards to use to inform their actions in four core areas of
scheme governance and administration: governing your scheme,
managing risks, administration and resolving issues.

Each core section includes practical guidance to help scheme
managers and pension boards to discharge their legal duties. The
regulator recognises that there may be alternative and justifiable
actions or approaches that scheme managers or pension boards
may wish to adopt, provided these meet the minimum legal
requirements.

Schemes will need to consider and apply the practical guidance to
suit their own particular characteristics and arrangements.

20

Section 5 and s30(1)

of the 2013 Act (in the
case of new public body
schemes, if the scheme
has more than one
member).

21

Section 7, ibid. This
requirement only applies
to schemes set up under
s1 of the 2013 Act.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



29

Introduction

Northern Ireland

31. References to the law that applies in Great Britain should be taken
to include corresponding legislation in Northern Ireland. References
to HM Treasury directions should be taken to be directions by the
Department of Finance and Personnel. The responsible authority for
each scheme is the relevant government department?2,

32. The appendix to this code lists the corresponding references to
Northern Ireland legislation.

22

Section 2 and Schedule
2 of the Public Service
Pensions Act (Northern
Ireland) 2014.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



30

Governing your scheme

33.

This part of the code covers:

e knowledge and understanding required by pension board
members

e conflicts of interest and representation, and

e publishing information about schemes.

Knowledge and understanding required
by pension board members

Legal requirements

34.

35.

36.

A member of the pension board of a public service pension scheme
must be conversant with:

e the rules of the scheme?3, and

e any document recording policy about the administration of the
scheme which is for the time being adopted in relation to the
scheme.

A member of a pension board must have knowledge and
understanding of:

e the law relating to pensions, and
e any other matters which are prescribed in regulations.

The degree of knowledge and understanding required is that
appropriate for the purposes of enabling the individual to properly
exercise the functions of a member of the pension board??.

Practical guidance

37.

38.

39.

The legislative requirements about knowledge and understanding
only apply to pension board members. However, scheme managers
should take account of this guidance as it will support them in
understanding the legal framework and enable them to help
pension board members to meet their legal obligations.

Schemes? should establish and maintain policies and
arrangements for acquiring and retaining knowledge and
understanding to support their pension board members. Schemes
should designate a person to take responsibility for ensuring that a
framework is developed and implemented.

However, it is the responsibility of individual pension board
members to ensure that they have the appropriate degree of
knowledge and understanding to enable them to properly exercise
their functions as a member of the pension board.

23

See paragraph 21 for the
definition of the 'rules of
the scheme’.

24
Section 248A of the
Pensions Act 2004.

25
See paragraph 25 for the
definition of ‘schemes’.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



31

Governing your scheme

Areas of knowledge and understanding required

40. Pension board members must be conversant with their scheme

41.

42.

rules, which are primarily found in the scheme regulations?®, and
documented administration policies currently in force for their
pension scheme?’. Being ‘conversant’ means having a working
knowledge of the scheme regulations and policies, so that pension
board members can use them effectively when carrying out their
duties.

They must also have knowledge and understanding of the law
relating to pensions (and any other matters prescribed in legislation)
to the degree appropriate for them to be able to carry out their
role, responsibilities and duties.

In terms of documented administration policies, specific documents
recording policy about administration will vary from scheme to
scheme. However, the following are examples of administration
policies which the regulator considers to be particularly pertinent
and would expect to be documented where relevant to a pension
scheme, and with which pension board members must therefore be
conversant where applicable?8. This list is not exhaustive and other
documented policies may fall into this category:

* any scheme-approved policies relating to:

conflicts of interest and the register of interests
- record-keeping

— internal dispute resolution

— reporting breaches

— maintaining contributions to the scheme

- the appointment of pension board members

* risk assessments/management and risk register policies for the
scheme

e scheme booklets, announcements and other key member and
employer communications, which describe scheme policies
and procedures

e the roles, responsibilities and duties of the scheme manager,
pension board and individual pension board members

e terms of reference, structure and operational policies of the
pension board and/or any sub-committee

® statements of policy about the exercise of discretionary
functions

26

See paragraph 21 for the
definition of the 'rules of
the scheme’.

27
Section 248A(2) of the
Pensions Act 2004.

28
Section 248A(2)(b) of the
Pensions Act 2004.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



32

Governing your scheme

e statements of policy about communications with members and
scheme employers

e the pension administration strategy, or equivalent??, and
e any admission body (or equivalent) policies.

43. For pension board members of funded pension schemes,
documents which record policy about the administration of the
scheme will include those relating to funding and investment
matters. For example, where relevant they must be conversant with
the statement of investment principles and the funding strategy
statement30,

44. Pension board members must also be conversant with any other
documented policies relating to the administration of the scheme.
For example, where applicable, they must be conversant with
policies relating to:

e the contribution rate or amount (or the range/variability where
there is no one single rate or amount) payable by employers
participating in the scheme

e statements of assurance (for example, assurance reports from
administrators)

e third party contracts and service level agreements

e  stewardship reports from outsourced service providers (for
example, those performing outsourced activities such as scheme
administration), including about compliance issues

e scheme annual reports and accounts

® accounting requirements relevant to the scheme

e audit reports, including from outsourced service providers, and
e  other scheme-specific governance documents.

45. Where DC or DC AVC options are offered, pension board
members should also be familiar with the requirements for the
payment of member contributions to the providers, the principles
relating to the operation of those arrangements, the choice of 29
investments to be offered to members, the provider's investment For the local

overnment pension
and fund performance report and the payment schedule for such ?chemes thispmight

arrangements. include information

about the setting of

46. Schemes should prepare and keep an updated list of the performance targets
documents with which they consider pension board members need or making agreements

about levels of

to be conversant. This will enable them to effectively carry out their f
perrormance.

role. They should make sure that both the list and the documents
are available in accessible formats. 30

Section 248A(2)(b) of the
Pensions Act 2004.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



33

Governing your scheme

Degree of knowledge and understanding required

47. The roles, responsibilities and duties of pension boards and their
individual members will vary between pension schemes. Matters for
which the pension board is responsible will be set out in scheme
regulations3!. Clear guidance on the roles, responsibilities and
duties of pension boards and the members of those boards should
be set out in scheme documentation.

48. Schemes should assist individual pension board members to
determine the degree of knowledge and understanding that is
sufficient for them to effectively carry out their role, responsibilities
and duties as a pension board member.

49. Pension board members must have a working knowledge of their
scheme regulations and documented administration policies. They
should understand their scheme regulations and policies in enough
detail to know where they are relevant to an issue and where a
particular provision or policy may apply.

50. Pension board members must have knowledge and understanding
of the law relating to pensions (and any other prescribed matters)
sufficient for them to exercise the functions of their role. Pension
board members should be aware of the range and extent of the
law relating to pensions which applies to their scheme, and have
sufficient understanding of the content and effect of that law to
recognise when and how it impacts on their responsibilities and
duties.

51. Pension board members should be able to identify and where
relevant challenge any failure to comply with:

e the scheme regulations

e other legislation relating to the governance and administration
of the scheme

® any requirements imposed by the regulator, or

e any failure to meet the standards and expectations set out in
any relevant codes of practice issued by the regulator.

52. Pension board members’ breadth of knowledge and understanding
should be sufficient to allow them to understand fully and challenge
any information or advice they are given. They should understand
how that information or advice impacts on any issue or decision
relevant to their responsibilities and duties.

31
Section 5(2) of the 2013
Act.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



34

Governing your scheme

53. Pension board members of funded pension schemes should
ensure that they have the appropriate degree of knowledge and
understanding of funding and investment matters relating to their
scheme to enable them to effectively carry out their role. This
includes having a working knowledge of provisions in their scheme
regulations and administration policies that relate to funding and
investment, as well as knowledge and understanding of relevant law
relating to pensions.

54. All board members should attain appropriate knowledge so that
they are able to understand the relevant law in relation to their
scheme and role. The degree of knowledge and understanding
required of pension board members may vary according to the role
of the board member, as well as the expertise of the board member.
For example, a board member who is also a pensions law expert
(for instance, as a result of their day job) should have a greater level
of knowledge than that considered appropriate for board members
without this background.

Acquiring, reviewing and updating knowledge and
understanding

55. Pension board members should invest sufficient time in their
learning and development alongside their other responsibilities
and duties. Schemes should provide pension board members
with the relevant training and support that they require. Training
is an important part of the individual’s role and will help to ensure
that they have the necessary knowledge and understanding to
effectively meet their legal obligations.

56. Newly appointed pension board members should be aware that
their responsibilities and duties as a pension board member begin
from the date they take up their post. Therefore, they should
immediately start to familiarise themselves with the scheme
regulations, documents recording policy about the administration
of the scheme and relevant pensions law. Schemes should offer pre-
appointment training or arrange for mentoring by existing pension
board members. This can also ensure that historical and scheme-
specific knowledge is retained when pension board members
change.

57. Pension board members should undertake a personal training
needs analysis and regularly review their skills, competencies
and knowledge to identify gaps or weaknesses. They should use
a personalised training plan to document and address these

promptly.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



35

Governing your scheme

58. Learning programmes should be flexible, allowing pension board

59.

members to update particular areas of learning where required and
to acquire new areas of knowledge in the event of any change. For
example, pension board members who take on new responsibilities
will need to ensure that they gain appropriate knowledge and
understanding relevant to carrying out those new responsibilities.

The regulator will provide an e-learning programme to help meet
the needs of pension board members, whether or not they have
access to other learning. If schemes choose alternative learning
programmes they should be confident that those programmes:

®  cover the type and degree of knowledge and understanding
required

e reflect the legal requirements, and

e are delivered within an appropriate timescale.

Demonstrating knowledge and understanding

60.

Schemes should keep appropriate records of the learning activities
of individual pension board members and the board as a whole.
This will help pension board members to demonstrate steps they
have taken to comply with legal requirements and how they have
mitigated risks associated with knowledge gaps. A good external
learning programme will maintain records of the learning activities
of individuals on the programme or of group activities, if these have
taken place.

Conflicts of interest and representation

Legal requirements

61.

62.

A conflict of interest is a financial or other interest which is
likely to prejudice a person’s exercise of functions as a member
of the pension board. It does not include a financial or other
interest arising merely by virtue of that person being a member

of the scheme or any connected scheme for which the board is
established3?.

In relation to the pension board, scheme regulations must include 32

provision requiring the scheme manager to be satisfied: Section 5(5) of the 2013
Act defines a conflict
of interest in relation
to pension board
members and s7(5) of
that Act in relation to
scheme advisory board
members.

e that a person to be appointed as a member of the pension
board does not have a conflict of interest and

e from time to time, that none of the members of the pension
board has a conflict of interest33.

33
Section 5(4)(a), ibid.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes a



36

Governing your scheme

63. Scheme regulations must require each member or proposed
member of a pension board to provide the scheme manager with
such information as the scheme manager reasonably requires for
the purposes of meeting the requirements referred to above34.

64. Scheme regulations must include provision requiring the
pension board to include employer representatives and member
representatives in equal numbers3>.

65. Inrelation to the scheme advisory board, the regulations must also
include provision requiring the responsible authority to be satisfied:

e that a person to be appointed as a member of the scheme
advisory board does not have a conflict of interest and

e from time to time, that none of the members of the scheme
advisory board has a conflict of interest3.

66. Scheme regulations must require each member of a scheme
advisory board to provide the responsible authority with such
information as the responsible authority reasonably requires for the

purposes of meeting the requirements referred to above®’.

Practical guidance

67. This guidance is to help scheme managers to meet the legal
requirement to be satisfied that pension board members do not
have any conflicts of interest. The same requirements apply to
responsible authorities in relation to scheme advisory boards,
(apart from the requirement regarding employer and member
representatives), but the regulator does not have specific
responsibility for oversight of scheme advisory boards.

68. Actual conflicts of interest are prohibited by the 2013 Act and
cannot, therefore, be managed. Only potential conflicts of interest
can be managed.

69. A conflict of interest may arise when pension board members:

e must fulfil their statutory role38 of assisting the scheme 34

manager in securing compliance with the scheme regulations, ;8?2?;(4)(& of the

other legislation relating to the governance and administration '

of the scheme and any requirements imposed by the regulator 35

or with any other matter for which they are responsible, whilst Section 5(4)(c), ibid.
* having a separate personal interest (financial or otherwise), 3%

the nature of which gives rise to a possible conflict with their Section 7(4)(a), ibid.

statutory role.

37

Section 7(4)(b), ibid.

38
Section 5(2), ibid.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



37

Governing your scheme

70.

71.

72.

Some, if not all, of the ‘Seven principles of public life’ (formerly
known as the ‘Nolan principles’)3? will already apply to people
carrying out roles in public service pension schemes, for example
through the Ministerial code, Civil Service code or other codes of
conduct. These principles should be applied to all pension board
members in the exercise of their functions as they require the
highest standards of conduct. Schemes should incorporate the
principles into any codes of conduct (and across their policies and
processes) and other internal standards for pension boards.

Other legal requirements relating to conflicts of interest may

apply to pension board members and/or scheme advisory board
members®0. The regulator may not have specific responsibility for
enforcing all such legal requirements, but it does have a particular
role in relation to pension board members and conflicts of interest.
While pension board members may be subject to other legal
requirements, when exercising functions as a member of a pension

board they must meet the specific requirements of the 2013 Act and

are expected to satisfy the standards of conduct and practice set
out in this code.

It is likely that some pension board members will have dual
interests, which may include other responsibilities. Scheme
managers and pension board members will need to consider all
other interests, financial or otherwise, when considering interests
which may give rise to a potential or actual conflict. For example,
a finance officer appointed as a pension board member can

offer their knowledge and make substantial contributions to the
operational effectiveness of the scheme, but from time to time
they may be involved in a decision or matter which may be, or
appear to be, in opposition to another interest. For instance, the
pension board may be required to take or scrutinise a decision
which involves the use of departmental resources to improve
scheme administration, while the finance officer is at the same time
tasked, by virtue of their employment, with reducing departmental
spending. A finance officer might not be prevented from being a
member of a pension board, but the scheme manager must be
satisfied that their dual interests are not likely to prejudice the
pension board member in the exercise of any particular function.

39

The Committee on
Standards in Public

Life has set out seven
principles of public life
which apply to anyone
who works as a public
office holder or in

other sectors delivering
public services:
www.gov.uk/government/
publications/the-7-
principles-of-public-life.

40

For example, local
government legislation
applicable to English
local authorities contains
legal requirements
relating to certain
people about standards
of conduct, conflicts of
interest and disclosure
of certain interests.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life

38

Governing your scheme

73.

74.

Scheme regulations will set out matters for which the pension
board is responsible®!. Schemes*? should set out clear guidance
on the roles, responsibilities and duties of pension boards and

the members of those boards in scheme documentation. This
should cover, for example, whether they have responsibility for
administering or monitoring the administration of the scheme;
developing, delivering or overseeing compliance with requirements
for governance and/or administration policies; and taking or
scrutinising decisions relating to governance and/or administration.
Regardless of their remit, potential conflicts of interest affecting
pension board members need to be identified, monitored and
managed effectively.

Schemes should consider potential conflicts of interest in relation
to the full scope of roles, responsibilities and duties of pension
board members. It is recommended that all those involved in the
management or administration of public service pension schemes
take professional legal advice when considering issues to do with
conflicts of interest.

A three-stage approach to managing potential
conflicts of interest

75.

76.

Conflicts of interest can inhibit open discussions and result in
decisions, actions or inactions which could lead to ineffective
governance and administration of the scheme. They may result in
pension boards acting improperly, or lead to a perception that they
have acted improperly. It is therefore essential that any interests,
which have the potential to become conflicts of interest or be
perceived as conflicts of interest, are identified and that potential
conflicts of interest (including perceived conflicts) are monitored
and managed effectively.

Schemes should ensure that there is an agreed and documented
conflicts policy and procedure, which includes identifying,
monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest. They
should keep this under regular review. Policies and procedures
should include examples of scenarios giving rise to conflicts
of interest, how a conflict might arise specifically in relation to
a pension board member and the process that pension board
members and scheme managers should follow to address a
situation where board members are subject to a potential or actual
conflict of interest.

41

Section 5(2) of the 2013
Act.

42
See paragraph 25 for the
definition of 'schemes’.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



39

Governing your scheme

77. Broadly, schemes should consider potential conflicts of interest in
three stages:

e  identifying
®*  monitoring, and

®* managing.

Identifying potential conflicts

78. Schemes should cultivate a culture of openness and transparency.
They should recognise the need for continual consideration of
potential conflicts. Disclosure of interests which have the potential
to become conflicts of interest should not be ignored. Pension
board members should have a clear understanding of their role and
the circumstances in which they may find themselves in a position
of conflict of interest. They should know how to manage potential
conflicts.

79. Pension board members, and people who are proposed to be
appointed to a pension board, must provide scheme managers with
information that they reasonably require to be satisfied that pension
board members and proposed members do not have a conflict of
interest®3.

80. Schemes should ensure that pension board members are appointed
under procedures that require them to disclose any interests,
including other responsibilities, which could become conflicts of
interest and which may adversely affect their suitability for the role,
before they are appointed.

81. All terms of engagement, for example appointment letters, should
include a clause requiring disclosure of all interests, including any
other responsibilities, which have the potential to become conflicts
of interest, as soon as they arise. All interests disclosed should be
recorded. See the section of this code on ‘Monitoring potential
conflicts’.

82. Schemes should take time to consider what important matters or
decisions are likely to be considered during, for example, the year
ahead and identify and consider any potential or actual conflicts of
interest that may arise in the future. Pension board members should
be notified as soon as practically possible and mitigations should
be put in place to prevent these conflicts from materialising.

43

Section 5(4)(b) of the
2013 Act and scheme
regulations.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



40

Governing your scheme

Monitoring potential conflicts

83.

84.

85.

As part of their risk assessment process, schemes should identify,
evaluate and manage dual interests which have the potential to
become conflicts of interest and pose a risk to the scheme and
possibly members, if they are not mitigated. Schemes should
evaluate the nature of any dual interests and assess the likely
consequences were a conflict of interest to materialise.

A register of interests should provide a simple and effective means
of recording and monitoring dual interests and responsibilities.
Schemes should also capture decisions about how to manage
potential conflicts of interest in their risk registers or elsewhere.
The register of interests and other relevant documents should be
circulated to the pension board for ongoing review and published,
for example on a scheme's website.

Conflicts of interest should be included as an opening agenda

item at board meetings and revisited during the meeting, where
necessary. This provides an opportunity for those present to declare
any interests, including other responsibilities, which have the
potential to become conflicts of interest, and to minute discussions
about how they will be managed to prevent an actual conflict
arising.

Managing potential conflicts

86.

87.

88.

Schemes should establish and operate procedures which ensure
that pension boards are not compromised by potentially conflicted
members. They should consider and determine the roles and
responsibilities of pension boards and individual board members
carefully to ensure that conflicts of interest do not arise, nor are
perceived to have arisen.

A perceived conflict of interest can be as damaging to the
reputation of a scheme as an actual conflict of interest. It could
result in scheme members and interested parties losing confidence
in the way a scheme is governed and administered. Schemes should
be open and transparent about the way they manage potential
conflicts of interest.

When seeking to prevent a potential conflict of interest becoming
detrimental to the conduct or decisions of the pension board,
schemes should consider obtaining professional legal advice when
assessing any option.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



41

Governing your scheme

Examples of conflicts of interest

89. Below are some examples of potential or actual conflicts of interest
which could arise, or be perceived to arise, in relation to public
service pension schemes. These will depend on the precise role,
responsibilities and duties of a pension board. The examples
provided are for illustrative purposes only and are not exhaustive.
They should not be relied upon as a substitute for the exercise of
judgement based on the principles set out in this code and any
legal advice considered appropriate, on a case-by-case basis.

a. Investing to improve scheme administration versus saving
money

An employer representative, who may be a Permanent Secretary,
finance officer or local councillor, is aware that system X would
help to improve standards of record-keeping in the scheme, but it
would be costly to implement. The scheme manager, for instance
a central government department or local administering authority,
would need to meet the costs of the new system at a time when
there is internal and external pressure to keep costs down. In order
to meet the costs of the new system, the scheme manager would
need to find money, perhaps by using a budget that was intended
for another purpose. This decision could prove unpopular with
taxpayers. A conflict of interest could arise where the employer
representative was likely to be prejudiced in the exercise of their
functions by virtue of their dual interests.

b. Outsourcing an activity versus keeping an activity in-house

In an extension of the previous example, a member representative,
who is also an employee of a participating employer, is aware

that system X would help to improve standards of record-keeping
in the scheme, but it would mean outsourcing an activity that

is currently being undertaken in-house by their employer. The
member representative could be conflicted if they were likely to
be prejudiced in the exercise of their functions by virtue of their
employment.

c. Representing the breadth of employers or membership versus
representing narrow interests

An employer representative who happens to be employed by the
administering authority and is appointed to the pension board

to represent employers generally could be conflicted if they only
serve to act in the interests of the administering authority, rather
than those of all participating employers. Equally, a member
representative, who is also a trade union representative, appointed
to the pension board to represent the entire scheme membership
could be conflicted if they only act in the interests of their union and
union membership, rather than all scheme members.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



42

Governing your scheme

d. Assisting the scheme manager versus furthering personal
interests

i. A pension board member, who is also a scheme adviser,
may recommend the services or products of a related party,
for which they might derive some form of benefit, resulting
in them not providing, or not being seen to provide,
independent advice or services

ii. A pension board member who is involved in procuring or
tendering for services for a scheme administrator, and who
can influence the award of a contract, may be conflicted
where they have an interest in a particular supplier, for
example, a family member works there.

e) Sharing information with the pension board versus a duty of
confidentiality to an employer

An employer representative has access to information by virtue

of their employment, which could influence or inform the
considerations or decisions of the pension board. They have to
consider whether to share this information with the pension board
in light of their duty of confidentiality to their employer. Their
knowledge of this information will put them in a position of conflict
if it is likely to prejudice their ability to carry out their functions as a
member of the pension board.

Representation on pension boards

90. While scheme regulations must require pension boards to have an
equal number of employer and member representatives*, there is
flexibility to design arrangements which best suit each scheme.

91. Arrangements should be designed with regard to the principles
of proportionality, fairness and transparency, and with the aim
of ensuring that a pension board has the right balance of skills,
experience and representation (for example, of membership
categories and categories of employers participating in the
scheme). Those responsible for appointing members to a pension
board should also consider the mix of skills and experience needed
on the pension board in order for the board to operate effectively in
light of its particular role, responsibilities and duties.

44
Section 5(4)(c) of the
2013 Act.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



43

Governing your scheme

Publishing information about schemes

Legal requirements

92.

93.

The scheme manager for a public service scheme must publish

information about the pension board for the scheme(s) and keep

that information up-to-date®?.

The information must include:
e who the members of the pension board are
® representation on the board of members of the scheme(s), and

e the matters falling within the pension board’s responsibility*®.

Practical guidance

Publication of pension board information

94.

95.

96.

Scheme members will want to know that their scheme is being
efficiently and effectively managed. Public service pension schemes
should have a properly constituted, trained and competent pension
board, which is responsible for assisting the scheme manager to
comply with the scheme regulations and other legislation relating to
the governance and administration of the scheme and requirements
imposed by the regulator.

Scheme managers must publish the information required about
the pension board and keep that information up-to-date®’. This
will ensure that scheme members can easily access information
about who the pension board members are, how pension
scheme members are represented on the pension board and the
responsibilities of the board as a whole.

When publishing information about the identity of pension board
members, the representation of scheme members and matters
for which the board is responsible, schemes* should also publish
useful related information about the pension board such as:

e the employment and job title (where relevant) and any other

relevant position held by each board member 45
Section 6(1) of the 2013
e the pension board appointment process Act.
e who each pension board member represents 46

e the full terms of reference for the pension board, including Section 6(2), ibid.

details of how it will operate, and 4

* any specific roles and responsibilities of individual pension Section &(1), ibid.

board members.
48

See paragraph 25 for the
definition of 'schemes’.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



44

Governing your scheme

97.

98.

Schemes should also consider publishing information about
pension board business, for example board papers, agendas and
minutes of meetings (redacted to the extent that they contain
confidential information and/or data covered by the Data Protection
Act 1998). They should consider any requests for additional
information to be published, to encourage scheme member
engagement and promote a culture of transparency.

Scheme managers must ensure that information published about
the pension board is kept up-to-date®?. Schemes should have
policies and processes to monitor all published data on an ongoing
basis to ensure it is accurate and complete.

Other legal requirements

99.

Scheme managers (or any other person specified in legislation)
must comply with any other legal requirements relating to the
publication of information about governance and administration. In
particular, HM Treasury directions may require the scheme manager
or responsible authority of a public service pension scheme to
publish scheme information, including information about scheme
administration and governance and may specify how and when
information is to be published®.

49
Section 6(1) of the 2013
Act.

50
Section 15, ibid.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



45

Managing risks

100. This part of the code covers the requirement for scheme managers
to establish and operate adequate internal controls.

Internal controls

Legal requirements

101. The scheme manager of a public service pension scheme must
establish and operate internal controls. These must be adequate
for the purpose of securing that the scheme is administered and
managed in accordance with the scheme rules and in accordance
with the requirements of the law.

102. For these purposes ‘internal controls’ means:

® arrangements and procedures to be followed in the
administration and management of the scheme

e systems and arrangements for monitoring that administration
and management, and

e arrangements and procedures to be followed for the safe

custody and security of the assets of the scheme®'.

Practical guidance

103. Internal controls are systems, arrangements and procedures that
are put in place to ensure that pension schemes are being run in
accordance with the scheme rules (which for most public service
pension schemes are set out in the scheme regulations) and other
law. They should include a clear separation of duties, processes
for escalation and decision making and documented procedures
for assessing and managing risk, reviewing breaches of law and
managing contributions to the scheme.

104. Good internal controls are an important characteristic of a well-run
scheme and one of the main components of the scheme manager's
role in securing the effective governance and administration of
the scheme. Internal controls can help protect pension schemes
from adverse risks, which could be detrimental to the scheme and
members if they are not mitigated.

105. Scheme managers must establish and operate internal controls®?.

These should address significant risks which are likely to have a o1
S Section 249A(5) and

material impact on the scheme. Scheme managers should employ a .

. - . .7 $249B of the Pensions
risk-based approach and ensure that sufficient time and attention is Act 2004.

spent on identifying, evaluating and managing risks and developing

and monitoring appropriate controls. They should seek advice, as 52

necessary. Section 249B, ibid.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



46

Managing risks

Identifying risks

106. Before implementing an internal controls framework, schemes®3

should carry out a risk assessment. They should begin by:
e  setting the objectives of the scheme

e  determining the various functions and activities carried out in
the running of the scheme, and

e  identifying the main risks associated with those objectives,
functions and activities.

107. An effective risk assessment process will help schemes to identify
a wide range of internal and external risks, which are critical to the
scheme and members. When identifying risks, schemes should
refer to relevant sources of information, such as records of internal
disputes and legislative breaches, the register of interests, internal
and external audit reports and service contracts.

108. Once schemes have identified risks, they should record them in
a risk register and review them regularly. Schemes should keep
appropriate records to help scheme managers demonstrate steps
they have taken to comply, if necessary, with legal requirements.

Evaluating risks and establishing adequate internal
controls

109. Not all risks will have the same potential impact on scheme
operations and members or the same likelihood of materialising.
Schemes should consider both these areas when determining the
order of priority for managing risks and focus on those areas where
the impact and likelihood of a risk materialising is high.

110. Many pension schemes will already have adequate internal controls
in place, some of which may apply to a variety of the functions of
the administering authority. Schemes should review their existing
arrangements and procedures to determine whether they can
prevent and detect errors in scheme operations and help mitigate
pension scheme-related risks. For example, schemes could obtain
assurance about their existing controls through direct testing
or by obtaining reports on controls. Any such review should be
appropriate to the outcome of the risk evaluation.

111. Schemes should consider what internal controls are appropriate
to mitigate the main risks they have identified and how best to
monitor them. For example, the scheme manager(s) for a funded
scheme should establish and operate internal controls that regularly
assess the effectiveness of investment-related decision making.
Scheme managers for all pension schemes should establish and 53
operate internal controls that regularly assess the effectiveness of See paragraph 25 for the
data management and record-keeping. definition of ‘schemes’.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



47

Managing risks

Managing risks by operating internal controls

112. Schemes should consider a number of issues when designing
internal controls to manage risks. The examples provided are for
illustrative purposes only and are not exhaustive. They should not
be relied upon as a substitute for the exercise of judgement, based
on the principles set out in this code and any advice considered
appropriate, particularly in light of any problems experienced in
the past.

a. How the control is to be implemented and the skills of the
person performing the control

For example, schemes should ensure that new employers
participating in the scheme understand what member data are
required and the process for supplying it. Where employers fail
to supply the correct data or do not follow the correct process,
schemes should ensure that the employer identifies the cause of
the error and that appropriate action is taken to avoid recurrence,
for example remedying a systemic error or providing the relevant
training.

b. The level of reliance that can be placed on information
technology solutions where processes are automated

For example, where scheme administration processes use an
automated system, internal or external auditors could audit the
system on an annual basis to assess whether it is capable of
performing a required function and report any issues that are

identified.

c. Whether a control is capable of preventing future recurrence or
merely detecting an event that has already happened

For example, schemes should ensure that their systems support the
maintenance and retention of good member records. This includes
implementing procedures and controls which identify where
systems are not fit for purpose, there are gaps in the data, the data
are of a poor quality and/or there has been a loss of data.

d. The frequency and timeliness of a control process

For example, schemes should ensure that data are complete. They

should undertake a data-cleansing or member-tracing exercise and
review this on a regular basis (at least annually or at regular intervals
that they consider appropriate for the scheme).

e. How the control will ensure that data are managed securely
For example, schemes should ensure that all staff, including
temporary or contract staff, complete information management
training before they are given access to sensitive data.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



48

Managing risks

f. The process for flagging errors or control failures, and approval
and authorisation controls

For example, schemes should ensure that member communications
such as member information booklets are reviewed regularly,
particularly where there are changes to the scheme. All relevant
parties should be aware of how they should flag errors and the
authorisation required before any changes are made to the
communications.

Monitoring controls effectively

113.

114.

115.

116.

117.

Risk assessment is a continual process and should take account of
a changing environment and new and emerging risks, including
significant changes in or affecting the scheme and employers who
participate in the scheme.

For example, where relevant, schemes should put in place systems
and processes for making an objective assessment of the strength
of an employer’s covenant (which should include analysis of their
financial position, prospects and ability to pay the necessary
employer contributions).

An effective risk assessment process will provide a mechanism to
detect weaknesses at an early stage. Schemes should periodically
review the adequacy of internal controls in:

*  mitigating risks

e  supporting longer-term strategic aims, for example relating to
investments

e identifying success (or otherwise) in achieving agreed
objectives, and

e providing a framework against which compliance with the
scheme regulations and legislation can be monitored.

Internal or external audits and/or quality assurance processes
should ensure that adequate internal controls are in place and
being operated effectively. Reviews should take place when
substantial changes take place, such as changes to pension scheme
personnel, implementation of new administration systems or
processes, or where a control has been found to be inadequate.

A persistent failure to put in place adequate internal controls may
be a contributory cause of an administrative breach. Where the
effect and wider implications of not having in place adequate
internal controls are likely to be ‘materially significant’, the regulator
would expect to receive a whistleblowing report that outlines
relevant information relating to the breach. For more information,
see the ‘Reporting breaches of the law’ section of this code.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



49

Managing risks

118.

Ultimately, the legal responsibility for establishing and operating
adequate internal controls rests with the scheme manager®?.
Scheme regulations or other documents may delegate
responsibilities to pension board members or others — for
example identifying, evaluating and managing risks, developing
and maintaining appropriate controls and providing assurance
to the scheme manager about any controls in place. However,
accountability for those controls and the governance of policies,
procedures and processes will reside with the scheme manager.

Outsourcing services

119.

120.

The legal requirements relating to internal controls apply equally
where schemes outsource services connected with the running
of the scheme. Providers should be required to demonstrate
that they will have adequate internal controls in their tenders for
delivering services. The requirements should be incorporated in
the terms of engagement and contract between the scheme and
service provider. Outsourced services may include, for example,
the maintenance of records and data, calculation of benefits and
investment management services. Where services are outsourced,
scheme managers should be satisfied that internal controls
associated with those services are adequate and effective.

An increasing number of service providers are obtaining
independent assurance reports to help demonstrate their ability
to deliver quality administration services. Schemes should ask their
service providers to demonstrate that they have adequate internal
controls relating to the services they provide. It is vital that schemes
ensure they receive sufficient assurance from service providers.

For example, the information from providers should be sufficiently
detailed and comprehensive and the service level agreements
should cover all services that are outsourced. Schemes should also
consider including provisions in contracts for outsourced services
requiring compliance with appropriate standards. This should help
to ensure effective administration.

54
Section 249B of the
Pensions Act 2004.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



50

Administration

121. This part of the code covers:
* scheme record-keeping
®*  maintaining contributions, and

e providing information to members.

Scheme record-keeping

Legal requirements

122. Scheme managers must keep records of information relating to:

e memberinformation®

56

e  transactions>®, and

e pension board meetings and decisions”’.

123. The legal requirements are set out in the Public Service Pensions
(Record Keeping and Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations
2014 ('the Record Keeping Regulations’).

Practical guidance

124. Failure to maintain complete and accurate records and put in place
effective internal controls to achieve this can affect the ability of
schemes8 to carry out basic functions. Poor record-keeping can
result in schemes failing to pay benefits in accordance with scheme
regulations, processing incorrect transactions and ultimately paying
members incorrect benefits. For funded schemes, it may lead to
schemes managing investment risks ineffectively. There is also the

potential for the maladministration of members’ contributions and 55

failure to identify any misappropriation of assets. Schemes should Regulation 4 of the
be able to demonstrate to the regulator, where required, that they Record Keeping
keep accurate, up-to-date and enduring records to be able to Regulations.
govern and administer their pension scheme efficiently. "

125. Scheme managers must establish and operate adequate internal Regulation 5, ibid.

controls®, which should include processes and systems to support

d-keepi : d hat th ffecti >/
recora- eeplng requwements and ensure that t ey are eftrective at Regulation 6, ibid.
all times.

58

See paragraph 25
for the definition of
‘schemes’.

59
Section 249B of the
Pensions Act 2004.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



51

Administration

Records of member information

126.

127.

128.

129.

130.

Scheme managers must ensure that member data across

all membership categories specified in the Record Keeping
Regulations is complete and accurate®®. Member data should be
subject to regular data evaluation.

Scheme managers must keep specific member data®’, which

will enable them to uniquely identify a scheme member and
calculate benefits correctly. This is particularly important with the
establishment of career average revalued earnings (CARE) schemes.
Scheme managers must be able to provide members with accurate
information regarding their pension benefits (accrued benefits to
date and their future projected entitlements) in accordance with
legislative requirements®?, as well as pay the right benefits to the
right person (including all beneficiaries) at the right time.

Schemes should require participating employers to provide them
with timely and accurate data in order for the scheme manager

to be able to fulfil their legal obligations. Schemes should seek

to ensure that processes are established by employers which
enable the transmission of complete and accurate data from the
outset. Processes will vary from employer to employer, depending
on factors such as employee turnover, pay periods, number of
employees who are members and the timing and number of payroll
processing systems.

Schemes should seek to ensure that employers understand the
main events which require information about members to be
passed from the employer to the scheme and/or another employer,
such as when an employee:

® joins or leaves the scheme

e changes their rate of contributions

e changes their name, address or salary

e changes their member status, and

e transfers employment between scheme employers.

Schemes should ensure that appropriate procedures and timescales
are in place for scheme employers to provide updated information
when member data changes, for checking scheme data against
employer data and for receiving information which may affect

the profile of the scheme. If an employer fails to act according to
the procedures set out above, meaning that they and/or scheme
managers may not be complying with legal requirements, those
under a statutory duty to report breaches of the law to the regulator
under section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 should assess whether
there has been a relevant breach and take action as necessary.

60

Section 16 and s30 of
the 2013 Act. Regulation
4 of the Record Keeping
Regulations specifies
member records which
must be kept. The Data
Protection Act 1998
requires personal data
to be accurate and up-
to-date.

61

Regulation 4 of the
Record Keeping
Regulations.

62

Legislative requirements
include s14 of the

2013 Act, HM Treasury
directions made under
that section, and the
Occupational and
Personal Pension
Schemes (Disclosure of
Information) Regulations
2013.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



52

Administration

Records of transactions

131. Schemes should be able to trace the flow of funds into and out of
the scheme and reconcile these against expected contributions and
scheme costs. In doing so, they will have clear oversight of the core
scheme transactions and should be able to mitigate risks swiftly.

132. Scheme managers must keep records of transactions made to and
from the scheme and any amount due to the scheme which has
been written off®3. They should be able to demonstrate that they
do so.

Records of pension board meetings and decisions

133. Scheme managers must keep records of pension board meetings
including any decisions made®*. Schemes should also keep records
of key discussions, which may include topics such as compliance
with policies relating to administration of the scheme.

134. Scheme managers must also keep records relating to any decision
taken by members of the pension board other than at a pension
board meeting, or taken by a committee/sub-committee, which has
not been ratified by the pension board. The records must include
the date, time and place of the decision and the names of board
members participating in that decision®. This will ensure that
there is a clear and transparent audit trail of the decisions made in
relation to the scheme.

Retention of scheme records

135. Schemes should retain records for as long as they are needed. It
is likely that data will need to be held for long periods of time and
schemes will need to retain some records for a member even after
that individual has retired, ensuring that pension benefits can be
properly administered over the lifetime of the member and their
beneficiaries. Schemes should have in place adequate systems and
processes to enable the retention of records for the necessary time
periods.

Ongoing monitoring of data

136. Schemes should have policies and processes that monitor data on
an ongoing basis to ensure it is accurate and complete, regardless
of the volume of scheme transactions. This should be in relation

63
to all membership categories, including pensioner member data Regulation 5 of the
where queries may arise once the pension is being paid. Record Keeping

Regulations.
137. Schemes should adopt a proportionate and risk-based approach to

monitoring, based on any known or historical issues that may have 64

occurred in relation to the scheme’s administration. This is particularly Regulation 6, ibid.
important for the effective administration of CARE pension schemes,

which requires schemes to hold significantly more data than needed |6b51d.

for final salary schemes.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



53

Administration

Data review exercise

138. Schemes should continually review their data and carry out a data
review exercise at least annually. This should include an assessment
of the accuracy and completeness of the member information
data held. Schemes should decide the frequency and nature of the
review in light of factors such as the level of data quality, any issues
identified and key scheme events.

139. Where the management of scheme data has been outsourced, it is
vital that schemes understand and are satisfied that the controls in
place will ensure the integrity of scheme member data. They should
ensure that the administrator has assessed the risks that poor or
deficient member records may present to the scheme and has taken
the necessary steps to mitigate them, where applicable.

140. Where there has been a change of administrator or the
administration system/platform, schemes should review and cleanse
data records and satisfy themselves that all data are complete and
accurate.

Data improvement plan

141. Where schemes identify poor quality or missing data, they should
put a data improvement plan in place to address these issues.
The plan should have specific data improvement measures which
schemes can monitor and a defined end date within a reasonable
timeframe when the scheme will have complete and accurate data.

Reconciliation of member records

142. Schemes should ensure that member records are reconciled with
information held by the employer, for example postal address
or electronic address (email address) changes and new starters.
Schemes should also ensure that the numbers of scheme members
is as expected based on the number of leavers and joiners since
the last reconciliation. Schemes should be able to determine those
members who are approaching retirement, those who are active
members and those who are deferred members.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



54

Administration

Data protection and internal controls

143. Schemes must ensure that processes that are created to manage
scheme member data meet the requirements of the Data Protection
Act 1998 and the data protection principles.

144, Schemes should understand:

* their obligations as data controllers and who the data
processors are in relation to the scheme

e the difference between personal data and sensitive personal
data (as defined in the Data Protection Act 1998)

e how data are held and how they should respond to data
requests from different parties

e the systems which need to be in place to store, move and
destroy data, and

*  how data protection affects member communications.

Other legal requirements

145. In addition to the requirements set out in the Record Keeping
Regulations, there are various other legal requirements that relate
to record-keeping in public service pension schemes. Those
requirements apply variously to managers, administrators and
employers. Not all requirements apply to all public service pension
schemes, but some of the key requirements are set out under the
following legislation:

e  Pensions Act 1995 and 2004

e  Pensions Act 2008 and the Employers’ Duties (Registration and
Compliance) Regulations 2010%6

e  Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Administration)
Regulations 1996

e Registered Pension Schemes (Provision of Information)
Regulations 2006

e Data Protection Act 1998, and

e  Freedom of Information Act 2000.

146. Where applicable, schemes should be able to demonstrate that
they keep records in accordance with these and any other relevant
legal requirements. Schemes should read the relevant legislation 66

. . . . . . . See the regulator’s
and any guidance in conjunction with this code where applicable. guidance about

automatic enrolment
for more information
about record-keeping
requirements under this
legislation.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



55

Administration

Maintaining contributions

Legal requirements

147.

148.

149.

Employer contributions must be paid to the scheme in accordance
with any requirements in the scheme regulations. Where employer
contributions are not paid on or before the date they are due
under the scheme and the scheme manager has reasonable cause
to believe that the failure is likely to be of material significance to
the regulator in the exercise of any of its functions, the scheme

manager must give a written report of the matter to the regulator as

soon as reasonably practicable®’.

Where employee contributions are deducted from a member’s pay,
the amount deducted must be paid to the managers of the scheme
at the latest by the 19th day of the month following the deduction,
or by the 22nd day if paid electronically (the ‘prescribed period’)8,
or earlier if required by scheme regulations. References to ‘days’
means all days. References to ‘working days’ do not include
Saturdays, Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Where employee contributions are not paid within the prescribed
period, if the scheme manager®? has reasonable cause to believe
that the failure is likely to be of material significance to the regulator
in the exercise of any of its functions, they must give notice of the
failure to the regulator and the member within a reasonable period
after the end of the prescribed period’%. Where there is a failure to
pay employee contributions on an earlier date in accordance with
scheme regulations, schemes should also consider their statutory
duty under section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 to assess and if
necessary report breaches of the law. For more information about
reporting breaches of the law, see this section of the code.

Practical guidance

150.

151.

As part of the requirement to establish and operate adequate
internal controls, scheme managers should ensure that there are
effective procedures and processes in place to identify payment
failures that are — and are not — of material significance to the
regulator. A ‘payment failure’ is where contribution payments are
not paid to the scheme by the due date(s), or within the prescribed
period and a ‘'materially significant payment failure’ refers to a
payment failure which is likely to be of material significance to the
regulator in the exercise of its functions.

Schemes’! should monitor pension contributions, resolve payment
issues and report payment failures, as appropriate, so that the
scheme is administered and managed in accordance with the
scheme regulations and other legal requirements.

67
Section 70A of the
Pensions Act 2004.

68

Section 49(8) of the
Pensions Act 1995 and
regulation 16 of the
Occupational Pension
Schemes (Scheme
Administration)
Regulations 1996.

69

The legal requirement to
report late payments of
employee contributions
is imposed on the
‘managers’ of a
scheme, which the
regulator generally
takes to be the ‘scheme
manager’ identified in
scheme regulations in
accordance with the
2013 Act.

70
Section 49(9) of the
Pensions Act 1995.

71
See paragraph 25 for the
definition of ‘schemes’.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



56

Administration

152.

153.

Adequate procedures and processes are likely to involve:

e developing a record to monitor the payment of contributions
*  monitoring the payment of contributions

®* managing overdue contributions, and

® reporting materially significant payment failures.

These procedures and processes should help scheme managers
to meet their statutory duty to report materially significant
payment failures to the regulator, as well as ensuring the effective
management of scheme contributions and payment of the right
pension.

Developing a record for monitoring the payment of
contributions

154.

155.

156.

157.

There are legislative requirements for managers of DB schemes to
keep a schedule of contributions; and for DC schemes, a payment
schedule, which allows managers to monitor contributions to their
scheme. There are various exemptions from these requirements
including for DB and DC schemes which are established by or under
an enactment and which are guaranteed by a Minister of the Crown
or other public authority, and for DB schemes which are pay-as-you-
go schemes’2.

Public service pension schemes which meet these exemptions
should nonetheless develop a record for monitoring the payment
of contributions to the scheme (a contributions monitoring record,
which must reflect any requirements in scheme regulations where
relevant). Schemes should prepare the contributions monitoring
record in consultation with employers.

A contributions monitoring record will enable schemes to check
whether contributions have been paid on time and in full, and,
if they have not, provide a trigger for escalation for schemes to
investigate the payment failure and consideration of whether
scheme managers need to report to the regulator and, where
relevant, members.

A contributions monitoring record should include the following
information:

e  contribution rates

e the date(s) on or before which employer contributions are to be
paid to the scheme

e the date by when, or period within which, the employee
contributions are to be paid to the scheme

* the rate or amount of interest payable where the payment of
contributions is late.

72

Exemptions from

the requirement to
secure a schedule

of contributions in
respect of DB schemes
under s227 of the
Pensions Act 2004 are
in regulation 17 of the
Occupational Pension
Schemes (Scheme
Funding) Regulations
2005. Exemptions
from the requirement
to secure a payment
schedule in respect of
DC schemes under s87
of the Pensions Act
1995 is in regulation

17 of the Occupational
Pension Schemes
(Scheme Administration)
Regulations 1996.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



57

Administration

158.

159.

160.

The date when employer contributions must be paid is the date on

or before which they are due under the scheme in accordance with

the scheme regulations (or other scheme documentation). Schemes
should assess the timing of payments against the date specified.

While there is a legal requirement for employee contributions to

be paid to the scheme by the 19th day of the month following
deduction, or by the 22nd day if paid electronically, this does not
override any earlier time periods required by the scheme regulations.
There are special rules for the first deduction of contributions on
automatic enrolment under the Pensions Act 200873

A contributions monitoring record should help schemes to identify
any employers who are not paying contributions on time and/

or in full, support schemes to ensure that contributions are paid
and employers to develop and implement new processes, as
appropriate. The contributions monitoring record should provide
schemes with information to maintain records of money received
and will be useful for schemes to ensure that their member records
are kept up-to-date.

Monitoring the payment of contributions

161.

162.

163.

164.

Schemes should monitor contributions on an ongoing basis for all the
membership categories within the scheme. Schemes should regularly
check payments due against the contributions monitoring record.

Schemes should apply a risk-based and proportionate approach to
help identify employers and situations which present a higher risk
of payment failures occurring and which are likely to be of material
significance and require the scheme manager to intervene.

Schemes should be aware of what is to be paid in accordance with
the contributions monitoring record or other scheme documentation,
which may be used by the pension scheme. Schemes should also
have a process in place to identify where payments are late or have
been underpaid, overpaid or not paid at all.

For schemes to effectively monitor contributions they will require
access to certain information. Employers will often provide the
payment information that schemes need to monitor contributions
at the same time as they send the contributions to the scheme,
which may be required under the scheme regulations. Payment
information may include:

e the employer and employee contributions due to be paid,
which should be specified in the scheme regulations and/or

other scheme documentation 73

Regulation 16 of the
Occupational Pension
Schemes (Scheme
Administration)
Regulations 1996.

* the pensionable pay that contributions are based upon (where
required), and

e due date(s) on or before which payment of contributions and
other amounts are to be made.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



58

Administration

165.

166.

167.

Schemes should have adequate internal controls in place to monitor
the sharing of payment information between the employer, pension
scheme and member. Where the necessary payment information

is not automatically available or provided by employers, schemes
should request the additional information they need. Schemes may
not need to obtain payment information as a matter of course, only
where it is required for effective monitoring.

Scheme managers must record and retain information on
transactions, including any employer and employee contributions
received and payments of pensions and benefits’4, which will
support them in their administration and monitoring responsibilities.

Where the administration of scheme contributions is outsourced to
a service provider, schemes should ensure that there is a process in
place to obtain regular information on the payment of contributions
to the scheme and a clear procedure in place to enable them to
identify and resolve payment failures which may occur.

Managing overdue contributions

168.

169.

When schemes identify or are notified of a problem, they should
assess whether a payment failure has occurred before taking steps
to resolve and, if necessary, report it. During their assessment,
schemes should take into account:

* legitimate agreed payments made directly by an employer
for scheme purposes, ie where the scheme has agreed that a
contributions payment can be made late due to exceptional
circumstances

e legitimate agreed payment arrangements made between
an employee and employer, ie where the employer has
agreed that a contribution payment can be made late due to
exceptional circumstances

e contributions paid directly to a pension provider, scheme
administrator or investment manager

e any AVGs included with an employer’s overall payment.

Where schemes identify a payment failure, they should follow a
process to resolve issues quickly. This should normally involve the
following steps:

a. Investigate any apparent employer failure to pay contributions
in accordance with the contributions monitoring record or legal
requirements.

b. Contact the employer promptly to alert them to the payment 74

failure and to seek to resolve the overdue payment. Regulation 5 of the
Record Keeping

Regulations.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



59

Administration

170.

171.

172.

c. Discuss it further with the employer as soon as practicable to find
out the cause and circumstances of the payment failure.

d. Ask the employer to resolve the payment failure and take steps
to avoid a recurrence in the future.

Schemes should maintain a record of their investigation and
communications between themselves and the employer. Recording
this information will help to provide evidence of schemes’ effective
monitoring processes and could help to demonstrate that the
scheme manager has met the legal requirement to establish

and operate adequate internal controls. It will also form part of

the decision of whether or not to report a payment failure to the
regulator and, where relevant, members.

The regulator recognises that a monitoring process based on
information provided by employers may not be able to confirm
deliberate underpayment or non-payment, or fraudulent behaviour
by an employer. Schemes should review current processes or
develop a new process which is able to detect situations where
fraud may be more likely to occur and where additional checks may
be appropriate.

Ultimately, schemes have flexibility to design their own procedures
so that they can obtain overdue payments and rectify administrative
errors in the most effective and efficient way for their particular
scheme.

Reporting payment failures which are likely to be of
material significance to the regulator

173.

174.

175.

Scheme managers must report payment failures which are likely
to be of material significance to the regulator within a reasonable
period, in the case of employee contributions; and as soon as
reasonably practicable in the case of employer contributions’>.

Where schemes identify a payment failure, they should attempt
to recover contributions within 90 days from the due date or
prescribed period having passed without full payment of the
contribution.

While schemes are not expected to undertake a full investigation
to establish materiality or investigate whether an employer has
behaved fraudulently, schemes should ask the employer:

e the cause and circumstances of the payment failure

e what action the employer has taken as a result of the payment 75
failure, and Section 49(9)(b) of the
) ) ) ) ) ) Pensions Act 1995 and
e the wider implications or impact of the payment failure. s70A of the Pensions Act
2004.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



60

Administration

176. When reaching a decision about whether to report, schemes should
consider these points together and establish whether they have
reasonable cause to report.

177. Having reasonable cause means more than merely having a
suspicion that cannot be substantiated. Schemes should investigate
the payment failure and use their judgement when deciding
whether to report to the regulator.

178. Schemes may choose to take an employer’s response to their
enquiries at face value if they have no reason to believe it to be
untrue or where their risk-based process indicates that there is
a low risk of continuing payment failure. Where they receive no
response, schemes may infer that an employer is unwilling to pay
the contributions due.

179. Examples of payment failures that are likely to be of material
significance to the regulator include:

* where schemes have reasonable cause to believe that the
employer is neither willing nor able to pay contributions,
for example in the event of a business failure or where an
employer becomes insolvent and is unable to make pension
payments

e where there is a payment failure involving possible dishonesty
or a misuse of assets or contributions, for example where
schemes have concerns that an employer is retaining and
using contributions to manage cash flow difficulties or where
schemes have become aware that the employer has transferred
contributions elsewhere other than to the pension scheme,
which may be misappropriation

e where the information available to schemes may indicate that
the employer is knowingly concerned with fraudulently evading
their obligation to pay employee contributions

e  where schemes become aware that the employer does not
have adequate procedures or systems in place to ensure the
correct and timely payment of contributions due and the
employer does not appear to be taking adequate steps to
remedy the situation, for example where there are repetitive
and regular payment failures, or

e any event where contributions have been outstanding for 90
days from the due date, unless the payment failure was a one-
off or infrequent administrative error that had already been
corrected on discovery or is thereafter corrected as soon as
possible.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



61

Administration

180.

181.

182.

183.

184.

185.

Examples of payment failures which are not likely to be of material
significance to the regulator include:

*  where a payment arrangement is being met by an employer for
the recovery of outstanding contributions, or

®  where there are infrequent one-off payment failures or
administrative errors such as where employees leave or join
the scheme and those occasional failures or errors have been
corrected within 90 days of the due date.

Schemes should identify and report to the regulator, as appropriate,
any payment failures that may not be of material significance taken
individually, but which could indicate a systemic problem. For
example, an employer consistently failing to pay contributions by
the due date or within the prescribed period, but paying within

90 days, may be due to inefficient scheme systems and processes.
Schemes may also need to report payment failures that occur
repeatedly and are likely to be materially significant to the regulator,
depending on the circumstances.

Reporting payment failures of employer contributions as soon

as ‘reasonably practicable’ means within a reasonable period
from the scheme manager having reasonable cause to believe
that the payment failure is likely to be of material significance to
the regulator. Schemes should also consider whether it may be
appropriate to report a payment failure of employer contributions
to scheme members.

A reasonable period for reporting would be within ten working
days from having reasonable cause to believe that the payment
failure is likely to be of material significance. This will depend

upon the seriousness of the payment failure and impact on the
scheme. A written report should be preceded by a telephone call, if
appropriate.

In the case of an employer failing to pay employee contributions

to the pension scheme, if the scheme manager has reasonable
cause to believe that the payment failure is likely to be of material
significance to the regulator, the failure must be reported to the
regulator’® and members within a reasonable period after the end
of the prescribed period’”. A reasonable period for reporting to the
regulator would be within ten working days and to members within
30 days of having reported to the regulator.

Reports relating to payment failures of employer contributions must
be made in writing (preferably using our Exchange online service)’®.
In exceptional circumstances the scheme manager could make a
telephone report.

76

Reporting to the
regulator does not affect
any responsibility to
report to another person
or organisation.

77

549(8) and (9) of the
Pensions Act 1995 and
regulation 16 of the
Occupational Pension
Schemes (Scheme
Administration)
Regulations 1996. Where
there is a failure to pay
employee contributions
on an earlier date

in accordance with
scheme regulations,
schemes should also
consider their statutory
duty under s70 of the
Pensions Act 2004 to
assess and if necessary
report breaches of the
law.

78
Section 70A of the
Pensions Act 2004.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



62

Administration

186. The regulator has standardised reporting procedures and
expectations regarding content, format and channel. For more
information, see the section of this code on ‘Reporting breaches of
the law'.

Providing information to members

Legal requirements

187. The law requires schemes’? to disclose information about benefits
and scheme administration to scheme members and others. This
section summarises the legal requirements relating to benefit
statements and certain other information which must be provided
and should be read alongside the requirements in the 2013 Act,
HM Treasury directions® and the Occupational and Personal
Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 2013 (‘the
Disclosure Regulations 2013’). In addition to these duties, there are
other legal requirements relating to the provision of information to
members and others under other legislation. See paragraph 211 for
further details.

Benefit statements

For active members of DB schemes under the 2013 Act

188. Scheme regulations must require scheme managers to provide an
annual benefit information statement to each active member of
a DB scheme established under the 2013 Act or new public body
scheme®!. The statement must include a description of the benefits

earned by a member in respect of their pensionable service®2.

189. The first statement must be provided no later than 17 months after
the scheme regulations establishing the scheme come into force.
Subsequent statements must be provided at least annually after
that date®3.

190. Statements must also comply with HM Treasury directions in terms
of any other information which must be included and the manner in

which they must be provided to members84.

For active, deferred or pension credit members of any DB public
service pension scheme under the Disclosure Regulations 2013

191. Managers® of a scheme must also provide a benefit statement
following a request by an active, deferred or pension credit member
of a DB scheme if the information has not been provided to that
member in the previous 12 months before that request8.

79
See paragraph 25 for the
definition of ‘schemes’.

80
Section 14 of the 2013
Act.

81

Section 14(1) and s30(1)
of the 2013 Act.

82

Section 14(2)(a), ibid.

83
Section 14(4) and (5),
ibid.

84
Section 14(2)(b) and (6),
ibid.

85

The Occupational
Pension Schemes
(Managers) Regulations
1986 specify who is to be
treated as the ‘'manager’
(in certain occupational
public service pension
schemes) for the
purpose of providing
information under
specified legislation,
including the Disclosure
Regulations 2013,

which may differ from
the person who is the
‘scheme manager’.

86

Regulation 16 of the
Disclosure Regulations
2013.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



63

Administration

192. These benefit statements must include information about the
amount of benefits by reference to a particular date and how they
are calculated®’. The full details depend on the type of member
making the request.

193. The information must be given as soon as practicable but no more
than two months after the date the request is made®.

For members of a DC public service pension scheme under the
Disclosure Regulations 2013

194. Managers of a scheme must provide a benefit statement to a
member of a DC public service pension scheme, who is not an
‘excluded person’, within 12 months of the end of the scheme
year®?. An ‘excluded person’ is a member or beneficiary whose
present postal address and email address is not known to the
scheme because the correspondence has been returned (in the
case of postal correspondence) or has not been delivered (in the
case of electronic correspondence)‘?o.

195. The information which must be provided includes the amount of
contributions (before any deductions are made) credited to the
member during the immediately preceding scheme year?, the
value of the member’s accrued rights under the scheme at a date
specified by the managers of the scheme?? and a statutory money
purchase illustration?3. The full detail of the information that must
be provided is set out in the Disclosure Regulations 2013.

Other information about scheme administration

196. Under the Disclosure Regulations 2013, managers of a scheme
must provide other information to members and others in certain
circumstances (for example, on request). The Regulations set out
the information which must be given, the timescales for providing
such information and the methods that may be used. Not all
information must be provided in respect of all public service
pension schemes (there are some exemptions for specified public
service schemes or according to the type of benefit offered), but
information which scheme managers may need to provide includes:

e  basic scheme information
e information about the scheme that has materially altered
e information about the constitution of the scheme

e annual report (this requirement will generally not apply to
unfunded DB public service pension schemes and DB schemes
for local government workers?)

87
Regulation 16 and
Schedule 5 of the

Disclosure Regulations
2013.

88
Regulation 16(3), ibid.

89
Regulation 17, ibid.

90
Regulation 2, ibid.

91
‘Scheme year' is defined
in Regulation 2, ibid.

92
Regulation 17 and
Schedule 6, ibid.

93

Paragraph 6 and
Schedule 6, ibid. There
are certain exceptions
to the requirements to
provide this information.

94
Regulation 4, ibid.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



64

Administration

197.

e information about funding principles, actuarial valuations and
payment schedules (these requirements will generally not
apply to unfunded DB public service pension schemes and DB
schemes for local government workers?)

e information about transfer credits

e information about lifestyling (this requirement will not apply in
respect of DB benefits in public service pension schemes?®)

e information about accessing benefits, and
e information about benefits in payment.

The detail of the information that must be provided to scheme
members and others and any exemptions are set out in the
Disclosure Regulations 2013. Managers must provide the required
information, along with confirmation that members may request
further information and the postal and email addresses to which a
person should send those requests and enquiries”’.

Who is entitled to information

198.

199.

Managers of a scheme must ensure that scheme members and
others are given information in accordance with the Disclosure
Regulations 2013, unless they are an ‘excluded person’ (as defined
above).

The Disclosure Regulations 2013 make provision for scheme
members and others to receive information that is relevant to their
pension rights and entitlements under the scheme. The categories
of people who are entitled to receive information vary according to
the different types of information, and there are exemptions where
information has already been provided in a specified period. The
detail of who is entitled to any particular type of information is set
out in the Disclosure Regulations 2013 but may include any of the
following (‘a relevant person’):

e  active members
e deferred members
®  pensioner members

®  prospective members
95

*  spouses or civil partners of members or prospective members Regulation 4 of the
. Disclosure Regulations

*  other beneficiaries, and 2013,

* recognised trade unions. 0%

Regulation 18(1), ibid.

97
Regulation 4(7), ibid.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



65

Administration

When basic scheme information must be provided

200. Managers must disclose certain basic information about the scheme
and the benefits it provides to a prospective member (if practicable
to do so) or a new member?. Where the manager has received
jobholder information?? for the member or prospective member
they must provide the information within a month of the jobholder
information being received'%. Where they have not received
jobholder information, they must provide the information within two
months of the date the person became an active member of the
scheme'01,

201. Managers must also provide the information on request to a
relevant person within two months of the request being made,
except where the same information was provided to the same
person or trade union in the 12 months before the request'02.

What information must be disclosed on request

202. In addition to the basic scheme information, pension scheme
members and other relevant persons are entitled to request certain
scheme information or scheme documents including:

e information about the constitution of the pension scheme, and

e information about transfer credits'03,

How benefit statements and other information must
be provided

203. Generally, schemes may choose how they provide information to
scheme members, including by post, electronically (by email or by
making it available on a website) or by any other means permitted
by the law. For benefit statements issued under the 2013 Act,

HM Treasury directions may specify how the information must be
provided. Where schemes wish to provide information required
under the Disclosure Regulations 2013 by electronic means there
are important steps and safeguards that must first be met'%*. These
include:

* scheme members and beneficiaries being provided with the
option to opt out of receiving information electronically by
giving written notice to the scheme

*  managers being satisfied that the electronic communications
have been designed:

— so that the person will be able to access and either store or
print the relevant information and

- taking into account the requirements of disabled people

98
Regulation 6 of the

Disclosure Regulations
2013.

99

Specified in regulation
3 of the Occupational
and Personal Pension
Schemes (Automatic
Enrolment) Regulations
2010.

100
Regulation 6(5) of the

Disclosure Regulations
2013.

101
Regulation 6(6), ibid.

102
Regulation 6(4) and (7),
ibid.

103

Regulations 11, 14
and Parts 1 and 4 of
Schedule 3, ibid.

104
Regulation 26, ibid.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



66

Administration

204.

205.

e  ensuring that members and beneficiaries who were members
or beneficiaries of the public service pension scheme on
1 December 2010 (where the scheme had not provided
information electronically prior to that date) has been sent a
written notice (other than via email or website), informing
them that:

— itis proposed to provide information electronically in the
future and

— scheme members and beneficiaries may opt out of
receiving information electronically by sending written
notice.

Where schemes make information or a document available on
a website for the first time, they must give notice (other than via
a website) to the recipient'9®. They must ensure that the notice
includes:

®  astatement advising that the information is available on the
website

e the website address

e  details of where on the website the information or document
can be read, and

®  an explanation of how the information or document may be
read on the website%.

When any subsequent information is made available on a website,
managers of a scheme must give a notice (other than via a website)
to recipients informing them that the information is available on the
website'%”. This notice will not be required where'08:

e atleast two documents have been given to the recipient by
hand or sent to the recipient’s last known postal address

e each of those letters asks the recipient to give their electronic
(email) address to the scheme and informs the recipient of their
right to request (in writing) that information or documents are
not to be provided electronically 105
Regulation 27(1) and

(5) of the Disclosure
Regulations 2013.

e  athird letter has been given to the recipient by hand or sent
to the recipient’s last known postal address and includes a
statement that further information will be available to read on

the website and that no further notifications will be sent to the 106
recipient and Regulation 27(2), ibid.
* the managers of the scheme do not know the recipient’s 107
email address and have not received a written request that Regulation 27(3) and (5),
information or documents are not to be provided to the ibid.

recipient electronically.
108
Regulation 28, ibid.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



67

Administration

206. In some cases, the Disclosure Regulations 2013 specify that
information must be made available by one of the following
methods10:

* available to view free of charge, at a place that is reasonable
having regard to the request

e published on a website (in which case the procedure to be
followed before making information available on a website
does not apply, except that the person or trade union must be
notified of certain details)

e given for a charge that does not exceed the expense incurred
in preparing, posting and packing the information, or

e publicly available elsewhere.

Practical guidance

207. Schemes should design and deliver communications to scheme
members in a way that ensures they are able to engage with
their pension provision. Information should be clear and simple
to understand as well as being accurate and easily accessible. It
is important that members are able to understand their pension
arrangements and make informed decisions where required.

208. Schemes should attempt to make contact with their scheme
members and, where contact is not possible, schemes should carry
out a tracing exercise to locate the member and ensure that their
member data are up-to-date.

209. Where a person has made a request for information, schemes
should acknowledge receipt if they are unable to provide the
information at that stage. Schemes may encounter situations
where the time period for providing information takes longer than
expected. In these circumstances, schemes should notify the person
and let them know when they are likely to receive the information.
Scheme managers and managers (where different) must provide
information in accordance with the time periods specified in the
2013 Act and Disclosure Regulations 2013.

210. To promote transparency, schemes should make information
readily available at all times to ensure that prospective and existing
members are able to access information when they require it.

Other legal requirements

211. Managers (or any other person specified in legislation) must
comply with other legislation requiring information to be provided
to members of public service pension schemes in certain 109
circumstances. Not all requirements apply to all public service Regulation 29 of the

. o . Disclosure Regulations
pension schemes and some may only arise in limited circumstances. 2013,

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



68

Administration

Some of the requirements that schemes may need to be aware of
are set out in or under the following legislation!°:

e  Occupational Pension Schemes (Contracting-out)
Regulations 1996

e Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values)
Regulations 1996

e  Occupational Pension Schemes (Winding up etc.)
Regulations 2005

e Occupational Pension Schemes (Internal Dispute Resolution
Procedures Consequential and Miscellaneous Amendments)
Regulations 2008 (the requirements of these regulations
are covered in the section of this code on ‘Internal dispute
resolution’).

110

The legislation identified
in this list is made under
section 113 of the
Pension Schemes Act
1993. There are other
requirements that relate
to providing information
to members which arise
under other legislation
and which may be
relevant to public
service pension schemes
(for example, under
legislation relating to
automatic enrolment
and early leavers).

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



69

Resolving issues

212. This part covers:
e internal dispute resolution, and

® reporting breaches of the law.

Internal dispute resolution

Legal requirements

213. Scheme managers'!! must make and implement dispute resolution

arrangements that comply with the requirements of the law and
help resolve pensions disputes between the scheme manager
and a person with an interest in the scheme. ‘Pension disputes’!
cover matters relating to the scheme between the managers and
one or more people with an interest in the scheme. These exclude
‘exempted disputes’.

12

214. There are certain ‘exempted disputes’ to which the internal dispute
resolution procedure will not apply''3. This includes disputes where
proceedings have commenced in any court or tribunal, or where
the Pensions Ombudsman has commenced an investigation into
it. Certain other prescribed disputes, for instance medical-related
disputes that may arise in relation to police and fire and rescue
workers, are also ‘exempted disputes’ 4.

215. A person has an interest in the scheme if they:

e are a member or surviving non-dependant beneficiary of a
deceased member of the scheme

e are a widow, widower, surviving civil partner or surviving
dependant of a deceased member of the scheme

®  are a prospective member of the scheme

® have ceased to be a member, beneficiary or prospective
member or

e claim to be in one of the categories mentioned above and the
dispute relates to whether they are such a person.

216. Dispute resolution arrangements may require people with an
interest in the scheme to first refer matters in dispute to a ‘specified
person’ in order for that person to consider and give their decision
on those matters. The specified person’s decision may then be
confirmed or replaced by the decision taken by the scheme
manager after reconsideration of the matters' 2.

111

Legal requirements
relating to the internal
dispute resolution
provisions are imposed
on the ‘'managers’ of

a scheme, which the
regulator generally
takes to be the ‘scheme
manager’ identified in
scheme regulations in
accordance with the
2013 Act.

112
Section 50(3) of the
Pensions Act 1995.

113
Section 50(9), ibid.

114

Regulation 4 of

the Occupational
Pension Schemes
(Internal Dispute
Resolution Procedures
Consequential

and Miscellaneous
Amendments)
Regulations 2008.

115
Section 50(4A) of the
Pensions Act 1995.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



70

Resolving issues

217. Scheme managers and specified persons (if used as part of a

scheme’s procedure) must take the decision required on the matters

in dispute within a reasonable period of receiving the application.
They must notify the applicant of the decision within a reasonable
period of having taken it'10,

218. Internal dispute resolution procedures must state the manner in
which an application for the resolution of a pension dispute is to be
made, the particulars which must be included in such an application
and the manner in which any decisions required in relation to such
an application are to be reached and given'"”. The procedure must

specify a reasonable period within which applications must be made

by certain people8.

219. Scheme managers must provide information about the scheme’s
dispute resolution procedure as well as information about The
Pensions Advisory Service (TPAS) and the Pensions Ombudsman to
certain people at certain stages”g.

Practical guidance

220. Scheme members expect their pension scheme to be managed
effectively. Where a person with an interest in the scheme is not
satisfied with any matter relating to the scheme (for example a
decision which affects them), they have the right to ask for that
matter to be reviewed.

221. Internal dispute resolution arrangements provide formal procedures
and processes for pension scheme disputes to be investigated and
decided upon quickly and effectively. They play a key role in the
effective governance and administration of a scheme.

222. Schemes'?0 can operate a two-stage procedure with a ‘specified
person’ undertaking the first-stage decision. Alternatively, they
may adopt a single-stage procedure if they consider that is more
appropriate for their scheme.

223. With the exception of certain matters outlined below, the law
does not prescribe the detail of the dispute resolution procedure.
Schemes should decide on this and ensure it is fit for purpose.

116
Section 50(5) of the
Pensions Act 1995.

117
Section 50B(4), ibid.

118
Section 50B(3)(a), ibid.

119

Regulation 6 of, and Part
1 of Schedule 2 to, the
Disclosure Regulations
2013 and regulation 2
of the Occupational
Pension Schemes
(Internal Dispute
Resolution Procedures)
(Consequential

and Miscellaneous
Amendments)
Regulations 2008.

120
See paragraph 25 for the
definition of ‘schemes’.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes e



71

Resolving issues

When applications should be submitted

224. Schemes may choose to specify time limits within which the
following people must apply for a dispute to be resolved’?':

e scheme members

e widows, widowers, surviving civil partners or surviving
dependants of deceased scheme members

®  surviving non-dependant beneficiaries of deceased scheme
members, and

®  prospective scheme members.

225. If schemes decide to specify time limits, they should publish and
make those time limits readily available to ensure that those with
an interest in the scheme are aware that they must submit an
application within a prescribed time limit.

226. Scheme managers must ensure their scheme’s procedure specifies
a reasonable period within which applications by the following
people must be made'?2:

® aperson who has ceased to be within the categories in
paragraph 224 above

e aperson who claims that they were a person within the
categories in paragraph 224 above and has ceased to be such
a person, and the dispute relates to whether they are such a
person.

227. A reasonable period would be six months beginning immediately
after the date on which the person ceased to be, or claims they
ceased to be, a person with an interest in the scheme. However,
schemes have the flexibility to exercise their judgement and take an
application outside a specified time period, if appropriate.

When decisions should be taken

228. Managers and specified persons (where applicable) must decide
the matter in dispute within a reasonable period of receiving the
application. A reasonable period is within four months of receiving
the application. In the case of a two-stage dispute resolution
procedure, the reasonable period applies to each stage separately.
Where a dispute is referred to scheme managers for a second-stage
decision, the reasonable period begins when the managers receive
the referral. However, there may be cases where it will be possible

121
to process an application sooner than the reasonable time given. Section 50B(3)(b) of the
Where this is the case, there should not be a delay in taking the Pensions Act 1995.
decision.

122

Section 50B(3)(a) of the
Pensions Act 1995.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



12

Resolving issues

229. There may be exceptional circumstances of a particular dispute
which may prevent the process being completed within the
reasonable time period stated above. For instance, where
the dispute involves unusually complex and labour-intensive
calculations or research, or delays occur that are outside the control
of the scheme manager (or specified person), or because they need
to obtain independent evidence.

230. The regulator recognises that the circumstances of each dispute are
different and decision times may vary. Schemes should be satisfied
that the time taken to reach a decision is appropriate to the
situation and be able to demonstrate this, if necessary.

When applicants should be informed of a decision

231. Applicants must be notified of the decision made by a scheme
manager and specified person (where applicable) within a
reasonable time period after the decision has been made'23.
Schemes should usually notify applicants of the decision no later
than 15 working days after the decision has been made. However,
there may be cases where it is possible to notify an applicant sooner
than the reasonable time given. Where this is the case, there should
not be a delay in notifying them of the decision.

232. Schemes should provide the applicant with regular updates on the
progress of their investigation. They should notify the applicant
where the time period for a decision is expected to be shorter or
longer than the reasonable time period and let them know when
they are likely to receive an outcome.

Implementing the procedure and processes

233. Scheme regulations or other documents recording policy about
the administration of the scheme should specify internal dispute
resolution arrangements. Schemes should focus on educating and
raising awareness of their internal dispute resolution arrangements
and ensuring that they are implemented.

234. Schemes should ensure that the effectiveness of the arrangements
is assessed regularly and be satisfied that those following the
process are complying with the requirements set, which includes
effective decision making. This is particularly important where
the arrangements require employers participating in the pension
scheme to carry out duties as part of the process, for example
where schemes have implemented the two-stage procedure and
employers are acting as the specified person for the first stage.

235. Schemes should confirm and communicate their arrangements to
members, for example, in the joining booklet. Schemes should
make their arrangements accessible to potential applicants, for

example by publishing them on a scheme website. 123
Section 50(5) of the

Pensions Act 1995.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



73

Resolving issues

236.

237.

238.

239.

Scheme managers must provide the following information
about the procedure and processes the scheme has in place for
the internal resolution of disputes to certain people in certain
circumstances'24:

®  prospective members, if it is practicable to do so

® any scheme members who have not already been given the
information

e  certain relevant people who request the information and
who have not been given that information in the previous 12
months, and

*  members or prospective members when schemes receive
jobholder information, or when a jobholder becomes an active
member, in connection with automatic enrolment.

Scheme managers must also provide the postal or email address
and job title of the person to contact in order to make use of the
internal dispute arrangements.

In addition, scheme managers must provide information about
TPAS and the Pensions Ombudsman at certain stages'2>. Upon
receiving an application for the resolution of a pension dispute,
scheme managers (or the specified person) must make the
applicant aware as soon as reasonably practicable that TPAS is
available to assist members and beneficiaries of the scheme and
provide contact details for TPAS. When notifying the applicant of
the decision, scheme managers must also inform the applicant that
the Pensions Ombudsman is available to investigate and determine
complaints or disputes of fact or law relating to a public service
pension scheme and provide the Pension Ombudsman’s contact
details.

Schemes can decide what information they need from applicants to
reach a decision on a disputed matter and how applications should
be submitted. Schemes should ensure they make the following
information available to applicants:

124
® the procedure and processes to apply for a dispute to be Regulation 6 of, and Part
resolved 1 of Schedule 2 to, the
Disclosure Regulations
e the information that an applicant must include 2013.
® the process by which any decisions are reached, and 125

Regulation 2 of

the Occupational
Pension Schemes
(Internal Dispute
Resolution Procedures)
(Consequential

and Miscellaneous
Amendments)
Regulations 2008.

e an acknowledgement once an application has been received.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



74

Resolving issues

240.

When reviewing an application, scheme managers and specified
persons (where relevant) should ensure that they have all the
appropriate information to make an informed decision. They
should request further information if required. Scheme managers
and specified persons should be satisfied that the times taken to
reach a decision and notify the applicant are appropriate to the
situation and that they have taken the necessary action to meet
the reasonable time periods. Scheme managers should be able to
demonstrate this to the regulator if required.

Reporting breaches of the law
Legal requirements

241.

242.

243.

Certain people are required to report breaches of the law to the
regulator where they have reasonable cause to believe that:

e alegal duty'? which is relevant to the administration of the

scheme has not been, or is not being, complied with

e the failure to comply is likely to be of material significance to
127

the regulator in the exercise of any of its functions'<”.
For further information about reporting late payments of employee
or employer contributions, see the section of this code on
‘Maintaining contributions’.

People who are subject to the reporting requirement (‘reporters’)
for public service pension schemes are:

d scheme managers128

®  members of pension boards

® any person who is otherwise involved in the administration of a
public service pension scheme

e employers'??: in the case of a multi-employer scheme, any

participating employer who becomes aware of a breach
should consider their statutory duty to report, regardless of
whether the breach relates to, or affects, members who are its
employees or those of other employers

e professional advisers'39 including auditors, actuaries, legal

advisers and fund managers: not all public service pension
schemes are subject to the same legal requirements to appoint
professional advisers, but nonetheless the regulator expects
that all schemes will have professional advisers, either resulting
from other legal requirements or simply as a matter of practice

® any person who is otherwise involved in advising the managers
of the scheme in relation to the scheme'3!.

The report must be made in writing as soon as reasonably
practicable'32. See paragraph 263 for further information about how
to report breaches.

126

The reference to a

legal duty is to a duty
imposed by, or by virtue
of, an enactment or rule
of law (s70(2)(a) of the
Pensions Act 2004).

127
Section 70(2) of the
Pensions Act 2004.

128

The legal requirement
to report breaches of
the law under section
70(1)(a) is imposed

on the 'managers’ of
a scheme, which the
regulator generally
takes to be the ‘'scheme
manager’ identified in
scheme regulations in
accordance with the
2013 Act.

129
As defined in s318 of the
Pensions Act 2004.

130
As defined in s47 of the
Pensions Act 1995.

131
Section 70(1) of the
Pensions Act 2004.

132
Section 70(2), ibid.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



75

Resolving issues

Practical guidance

244,

Schemes'33 should be satisfied that those responsible for reporting
breaches are made aware of the legal requirements and this
guidance. Schemes should provide training for scheme managers
and pension board members. All others under the statutory duty
to report should ensure they have a sufficient level of knowledge
and understanding to fulfil that duty. This means having sufficient
familiarity with the legal requirements and procedures and
processes for reporting.

Implementing adequate procedures

245.

246.

Identifying and assessing a breach of the law is important

in reducing risk and providing an early warning of possible
malpractice in public service pension schemes. Those people with a
responsibility to report breaches, including scheme managers and
pension board members, should establish and operate appropriate
and effective procedures to ensure that they are able to meet

their legal obligations. Procedures should enable people to raise
concerns and facilitate the objective consideration of those matters.
It is important that procedures allow reporters to decide within an
appropriate timescale whether they must report a breach. Reporters
should not rely on waiting for others to report.

Procedures should include the following features:

®  aprocess for obtaining clarification of the law around the
suspected breach where needed

®  aprocess for clarifying the facts around the suspected breach
where they are not known

®  aprocess for consideration of the material significance of the
breach by taking into account its cause, effect, the reaction
to it, and its wider implications, including (where appropriate)
dialogue with the scheme manager or pension board

®  aclear process for referral to the appropriate level of seniority
at which decisions can be made on whether to report to the
regulator

®  an established procedure for dealing with difficult cases

® atimeframe for the procedure to take place that is appropriate
to the breach and allows the report to be made as soon as
reasonably practicable

®  asystem to record breaches even if they are not reported to
the regulator (the record of past breaches may be relevant in
deciding whether to report future breaches, for example it may

.. 133
reveal a systemic issue), and

See paragraph 25
for the definition of

®  aprocess for identifying promptly any breaches that are so ‘schemes’

serious they must always be reported.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



76

Resolving issues

Judging whether a breach must be reported

247.

Breaches can occur in relation to a wide variety of the tasks normally
associated with the administrative function of a scheme such as
keeping records, internal controls, calculating benefits and, for
funded pension schemes, making investment or investment-related
decisions.

Judging whether there is ‘reasonable cause’

248.

249.

250.

251.

252.

Having ‘reasonable cause’ to believe that a breach has occurred
means more than merely having a suspicion that cannot be
substantiated.

Reporters should ensure that where a breach is suspected, they
carry out checks to establish whether or not a breach has in fact
occurred. For example, a member of a funded pension scheme may
allege that there has been a misappropriation of scheme assets
where they have seen in the annual accounts that the scheme'’s
assets have fallen. However, the real reason for the apparent loss

in value of scheme assets may be due to the behaviour of the

stock market over the period. This would mean that there is not
reasonable cause to believe that a breach has occurred.

Where the reporter does not know the facts or events around the
suspected breach, it will usually be appropriate to check with the
pension board or scheme manager or with others who are in a
position to confirm what has happened. It would not be appropriate
to check in cases of theft, suspected fraud or other serious

offences where discussions might alert those implicated or impede
the actions of the police or a regulatory authority. Under these
circumstances the reporter should alert the regulator without delay.

If the reporter is unclear about the relevant legal provision, they
should clarify their understanding of the law to the extent necessary
to form a view.

In establishing whether there is reasonable cause to believe that a
breach has occurred, it is not necessary for a reporter to gather all
the evidence which the regulator may require before taking legal
action. A delay in reporting may exacerbate or increase the risk of
the breach.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



77

Resolving issues

Judging what is of ‘material significance’ to the regulator

253. In deciding whether a breach is likely to be of ‘'material significance’
to the regulator. It would be advisable for those with a statutory
duty to report to consider the:

e cause of the breach

e effect of the breach

®  reaction to the breach, and

e wider implications of the breach.

254. When deciding whether to report, those responsible should
consider these points together. Reporters should take into account
expert or professional advice, where appropriate, when deciding
whether the breach is likely to be of material significance to the
regulator.

Cause of the breach

255. The breach is likely to be of material significance to the regulator
where it was caused by:

e dishonesty

®  poor governance or administration

e slow or inappropriate decision making practices

e incomplete or inaccurate advice, or

e acting (or failing to act) in deliberate contravention of the law.

256. When deciding whether a breach is of material significance, those
responsible should consider other reported and unreported
breaches of which they are aware. However, historical information
should be considered with care, particularly if changes have been
made to address previously identified problems.

257. A breach will not normally be materially significant if it has arisen
from an isolated incident, for example resulting from teething
problems with a new system or procedure, or from an unusual or
unpredictable combination of circumstances. But in such a situation,
it is also important to consider other aspects of the breach such
as the effect it has had and to be aware that persistent isolated
breaches could be indicative of wider scheme issues.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



/8

Resolving issues

Effect of the breach

258. Reporters need to consider the effects of any breach, but with the
regulator’s role in relation to public service pension schemes and
its statutory objectives in mind, the following matters in particular
should be considered likely to be of material significance to the
regulator:

pension board members not having the appropriate degree
of knowledge and understanding, which may result in pension
boards not fulfilling their roles, the scheme not being properly
governed and administered and/or scheme managers
breaching other legal requirements

pension board members having a conflict of interest, which

may result in them being prejudiced in the way that they carry
out their role, ineffective governance and administration of the
scheme and/or scheme managers breaching legal requirements

adequate internal controls not being established and operated,
which may lead to schemes not being run in accordance with
their scheme regulations and other legal requirements, risks not
being properly identified and managed and/or the right money
not being paid to or by the scheme at the right time

accurate information about benefits and scheme administration
not being provided to scheme members and others, which may
result in members not being able to effectively plan or make
decisions about their retirement

appropriate records not being maintained, which may result in
member benefits being calculated incorrectly and/or not being
paid to the right person at the right time

pension board members misappropriating any assets of the
scheme or being likely to do so, which may result in scheme
assets not being safeguarded, and

any other breach which may result in the scheme being poorly
governed, managed or administered.

259. Reporters need to take care to consider the effects of the breach,
including any other breaches occurring as a result of the initial
breach and the effects of those resulting breaches.

Reaction to the breach

260. Where prompt and effective action is taken to investigate and
correct the breach and its causes and, where appropriate, notify any
affected members, the regulator will not normally consider this to
be materially significant.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



79

Resolving issues

261. A breach is likely to be of concern and material significance to the
regulator where a breach has been identified and those involved:

® do not take prompt and effective action to remedy the breach
and identify and tackle its cause in order to minimise risk of
recurrence

e  are not pursuing corrective action to a proper conclusion, or
e fail to notify affected scheme members where it would have

been appropriate to do so.

Wider implications of the breach

262. Reporters should consider the wider implications of a breach when
they assess which breaches are likely to be materially significant
to the regulator. For example, a breach is likely to be of material
significance where the fact that the breach has occurred makes it
appear more likely that other breaches will emerge in the future. This
may be due to the scheme manager or pension board members
having a lack of appropriate knowledge and understanding to
fulfil their responsibilities or where other pension schemes may be
affected. For instance, public service pension schemes administered
by the same organisation may be detrimentally affected where a
system failure has caused the breach to occur.

Submitting a report to the regulator

263. Reports must be submitted in writing and can be sent by post
or electronically, including by email or by fax. Wherever possible
reporters should use the standard format available via the Exchange
online service on the regulator’s website.

264. The report should be dated and include as a minimum:
e full name of the scheme
e  description of the breach or breaches
e any relevant dates
® name of the employer or scheme manager (where known)
®* name, position and contact details of the reporter, and
® role of the reporter in relation to the scheme.
265. Additional information that would help the regulator includes:

® the reason the breach is thought to be of material significance
to the regulator

e  the address of the scheme

e the contact details of the scheme manager (if different to the
scheme address)

* the pension scheme’s registry number (if available), and

e whether the concern has been reported before.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



80

Resolving issues

266.

267.

268.

269.

270.

271.

Reporters should mark urgent reports as such and draw attention
to matters they consider particularly serious. They can precede a
written report with a telephone call, if appropriate.

Reporters should ensure they receive an acknowledgement for
any report they send to the regulator. Only when they receive an
acknowledgement can the reporter be confident that the regulator
has received their report.

The regulator will acknowledge all reports within five working days
of receipt, however it will not generally keep a reporter informed
of the steps taken in response to a report of a breach as there are
restrictions on the information it can disclose.

The reporter should provide further information or reports of further
breaches if this may help the regulator to exercise its functions. The
regulator may make contact to request further information.

Breaches should be reported as soon as reasonably practicable,
which will depend on the circumstances. In particular, the time taken
should reflect the seriousness of the suspected breach.

In cases of immediate risk to the scheme, for instance, where there
is any indication of dishonesty, the regulator does not expect
reporters to seek an explanation or to assess the effectiveness

of proposed remedies. They should only make such immediate
checks as are necessary. The more serious the potential breach and
its consequences, the more urgently reporters should make these
necessary checks. In cases of potential dishonesty the reporter
should avoid, where possible, checks which might alert those
implicated. In serious cases, reporters should use the quickest
means possible to alert the regulator to the breach.

Whistleblowing protection and confidentiality

272.

273.

The Pensions Act 2004 makes clear that the statutory duty to
report overrides any other duties a reporter may have such as
confidentiality and that any such duty is not breached by making a
report. The regulator understands the potential impact of a report
on relationships, for example, between an employee and their
employer.

The statutory duty to report does not, however, override ‘legal
privilege'13*. This means that oral and written communications
between a professional legal adviser and their client, or a person
representing that client, while obtaining legal advice, do not have
to be disclosed. Where appropriate a legal adviser will be able to
provide further information on this.
134

Section 311 of the
Pensions Act 2004.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



81

Resolving issues

274. The regulator will do its best to protect a reporter’s identity (if
desired) and will not disclose the information except where lawfully
required to do so. It will take all reasonable steps to maintain
confidentiality, but it cannot give any categorical assurances as the
circumstances may mean that disclosure of the reporter’s identity
becomes unavoidable in law. This includes circumstances where the
regulator is ordered by a court to disclose it.

275. The Employment Rights Act 1996 (ERA) provides protection for
employees making a whistleblowing disclosure to the regulator.
Consequently, where individuals employed by firms or another
organisation having a statutory duty to report disagree with a
decision not to report to the regulator, they may have protection
under the ERA if they make an individual report in good faith. The
regulator expects such individual reports to be rare and confined to
the most serious cases.

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @



Appendix

82

Corresponding Northern Ireland legislation

GB legislation

NI legislation

Pension Schemes Act 1993 (c. 48)

- Chapter 1 of Part 4
- section 113

Pension Schemes (Northern Ireland) Act 1993
(c. 49)

- Chapter 1 of Part 4

- section 109

Pensions Act 1995 (c. 26)

- section 47
- section 49
- section 50
- section 50B
- section 87

Pensions (Northern Ireland) Order 1995 (S|
1995/3213 (NI 22))

- Article 47

- Article 49

- Article 50

- Article 50B

- Article 85

Employment Rights Act 1996 (c. 18)

Employment Rights (Northern Ireland) Order
1996 (SI 1996/1919 (NI 16))

Data Protection Act 1998 (c. 29)

Data Protection Act 1998 (c. 29)

Freedom of Information Act 2000 (c.36)

Freedom of Information Act 2000 (c.36)

Pensions Act 2004 (c. 35)

- section 5

- section 13

- section 70

- section 70A
- section 90A
- Part 3

- section 227

- section 248

- section 248A
- section 249A
- section 249B
- section 311

- section 318

Pensions (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 (S
2005/255 (NI 1))

- Article 4

- Article 9

- Article 65

- Article 65A
- Article 85A
-Part4

- Article 206

- Article 225

- Article 225A
- Article 226A
- Article 226B
- Article 283

- Article 2

Pensions Act 2008 (c. 30)

Pensions (No. 2) Act (Northern Ireland) 2008
(c. 13)

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @




83

Appendix

GB legislation

NI legislation

Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (c. 25)

- section 1

- section 2

- section 3

- section 4

- section 5

- section 6

- section 7/

- section 14
- section 15
- section 16
- section 28
- section 30
- Schedule 2
- Schedule 3

Public Service Pensions Act (Northern Ireland)
2014 (c. 2)

- section 1

- section 2

- section 3

- section 4

- section 5

- section 6

- section 7/

- section 14
- section 15
- section 16
- section 28
- section 31
- Schedule 2
- Schedule 3

Occupational Pension Schemes (Managers)
Regulations 1986 (SI 1986/1718)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Managers)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1986 (SR 1986
No. 320)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Contracting-
out) Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/1172)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Contracting-
out) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1996 (SR
1996 No. 493)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme
Administration) Regulations 1996 (SI
1996/1715)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme
Administration) Regulations (Northern Ireland)
1997 (SR 1997 No. 94)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer
Values) Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/1847)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer
Values) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1996 (SR
1996 No. 619)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Winding up
etc.) Regulations 2005 (S 2005/706)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Winding up,
etc.) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2005 (SR
2005 No. 171)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme
Funding) Regulations 2005 (SI 2005/3377)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme
Funding) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2005
(SR 2005 No. 568)

Registered Pension Schemes (Provision of
Information) Regulations 2006 (SI 2006/567)

Registered Pension Schemes (Provision of
Information) Regulations 2006 (SI 2006/567)

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @




Appendix

84

GB legislation

NI legislation

Occupational Pension Schemes (Internal
Dispute Resolution Procedures Consequential
and Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations
2008 (S 2008/649)

Occupational Pension Schemes (Internal
Dispute Resolution Procedures Consequential
and Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 2008 (SR 2008 No. 116)

Employers’ Duties (Registration and
Compliance) Regulations 2010 (SI 2010/5)

Employers’ Duties (Registration and
Compliance) Regulations (Northern Ireland)
2010 (SR 2010 No. 186)

Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes
(Automatic Enrolment) Regulations 2010 (SI
2010/772)

Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes
(Automatic Enrolment) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2010 (SR 2010 No. 122)

Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes
(Disclosure of Information) Regulations 2013 (SI
2013/2734)

Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes
(Disclosure of Information) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 2014 (SR 2014 No. 79)

Public Service Pensions (Record Keeping and
Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2014

Public Service Pensions (Record Keeping and
Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 2014

Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes @




85

How to contact us

Napier House
Trafalgar Place
Brighton
BN14DW

T 0845 600 0707
F 08702411144
E customersupport@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

The Pensions
Regulator


www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk
mailto:customersupport@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



87

— T Taequiaui;
$0q Uogsued [5I0] JO SPAGU AL @R
cher] o) papaaid & Yoy ‘swweibiord
BUMBALS B peRdwo |
1 ©eqUIGW PR Uojsued axHT 1
. 1

Buogda ounsww| Jeai o | m

=il oL pus ]
] i m

B[S Jo Amaioag|

_ s1} Aq penss) solispinG ¢ piedal
BARY 0} uoigne BuLSEIUMIPE syt _
et payapdn pue pauojuouw jteirbel of _

Gupuipa) §a1] Ul awn RDYNS: H 1 Bupsisiumipy - ) oeid 1 ued Bupms paopeucaied
] !_ﬁ_nw_nngEEnB:n!un.wnn.m,, |I." —l - = B8Ry o} amquiay plung :-m.!._oa -<u ;

i aijnbat "~

B Bupl i wemuo g |
o ot e e 3 Aoy  @ABY JOU Op piEog UoiUad el |
“_ Bupersupupry up o) payufode suossed gy pagages] |

Bsammmaimuﬁﬂ_iinﬁ
i iislu_uas-svaun :n_Enm.IM
D ' 10y (Bupired uogonpu Bupnpw] 1

Summuupy Suuen panbal e cLessace) |
} 5 _oppox o1 Awoyne Bupiswpe syl |

4 Buy s i

layn pnoys saguoLpme Buuagsui 1
T T Teduiou pusoq Uojeusd Bl T 3
SINP PUB B3NN EUCASe) "ejor X8I IND |

Auwd amoeue o) wel o) pepynst 1

sEY pue

JoeauBap Gy} GULLEER &} RIS ¢ “

Rreoq worsned oo| RREIpU) JeEma L |

el |

L Buued Aease0su pue paLRWad),
' 2 fayod BuipusgaispUh pugy
Ay Buuneus Joj b

_ 2 bueasad u nAnnal:u!um POBURLOU .

|
!
;

BuoweNnbel !
.ain:ﬂ!nv::u:ng:xs _

uoaad 1o 31 i
ey p — _. T 4 .ﬁ-on:aﬁuuus:c—u._cz:zn:mm_..'l*

: LT
B Lk _ : ,,

b i I
PalR(@1 puUn 4 e uo way BulpUes: ] o pajueuenanp e, | Apoyny .\ Z
© 34 PMOYY |53 0 ﬁn.u__—:nu_ i 84 PINOYS BRI PIRDS :n_!_un__ _ Bupays|Wwpy v hﬂ : l!u.atnnﬁ:—“ﬂ:.oas_ =_=ﬂ-==_”a |
: L) a_,__ﬁﬁhz.smﬁa* x |—— Im . .20l @ equnel preng uomiag
W b
_“ P 5 m | =y y=s ay) Bupniauy ] Aucune Buprsiuuips 8w Aq
1 ) e ynBanl ! o | 9q O] pROU ISR PROq UnisuGd. paredaxd saiogod Am| Buy) Jo st joRsN _
." BumEEY P siuodde w0 pasapep] 1 O 19pISUDT ALY LR LA BLRLINIOD Eﬁw_::u“uum_.s .uE:H
i 6q pinowe Jseseu 15 {apyuan| H i ] Japad | pal e aiaa_a._:!..o&o i
N . _Fwmnd o) wopivs jo ucnemeeg: | ! . . ! e HBROGUORS A BN OL, s
i ] | it 1 i i
i Ameydoiddi wWay Buwaenmal PUE padopapp B LIGMIWIEY, .
: D.Ea.s-.q P 5 _ [ A T S ® 121 Bunnsus 10y Ayqsucdsos _ bl | Uoqeuesaal puB SR ‘St
el | pue) s oo il 8 UL § =) 0 uoeied TSI Hane 10 9UEeA 4B ey 5=y pieod) Uoislied:

| ¢ ppoysAwonne Buissuupe ey B} 40 LONLRSEARE 9 2UNIIB 0L

| Pinous Ayouyme Buuspsurupz ey r
[

i e Ry | o R i = S et 2 -
“ =B W Ry, {Kyuoa Eguaiod o} .—
H oyuos Aue Bugiodas ul panoas sdeis N
Auoyiy S puR 1saIR|UL0 SOa {8huEod X
“ BupspyLpY Bupada) pue Bukinusg] U) wa.oJ i . Buegsiuy pue I UL Joma) 0L 9 YOIUM lzﬁeiuu
A 1 UMD IR} PUETSIEPUN PiROkS S| I _ _, pue Buynboe Jay n._nEnucu.N_. JTadmdwe pug ssapsuesaidal |
| o Bupewpe pue Bueusw} . AR 58{50d LIBJUTRL PUR YsIaRme MUGL GLIALDS §0 KqWnU
1 Joj Apqpaucdse By seows k! : : __Pinous Apoyyne Buyeiguupe sy | fenba aABy o PIBUE YOsURY AT
“ | ! SORND 1AL Witoued 6] WAL AqRUD
| i RGNS B LI SUDRERBRY Su) U
Aoy 5l POQUUSAIS 21 Yolly RIYIRIL IS PAR),
| Buyesupupy [ suosuad o} Bueies e| 94 jo penrbal

. voyul
pajeIodioou] 9P MAwa) JEinba1 € SAEY
<. B gt pasa o moyuoo syl

“peAaLIBI pUE payodde 18 piEDg
| Uopued 00] Gl J0 WRGWBW YOIUM
Aq siloe pue rauusu m_s o:E:BnMw.

amwi2 o} oaed Ul 0q pInous S6sa0KI Y
- 81 4q peydop o, £
:  8If) Jo unjeNSHPE MY Jnaqe Aagod; r
Aupyone) juswnacp AUe puE sajru;, i
|| 8LIGLDS BI A JUBAIAAICS 4 JaL, _
| preoq unpgued mooj s o mquisws g |

BB JE4(}40 BLLOW { UL Bugaou
18 5) pey 84BY 0 Pue 5LOT MdY | &g
PRUEEY € 0} Paeoq Lniaued eam|

BUOREIAAY S PP PLAOD Mch 'ELOTY S =41 Isumbe UOHSOT BIUBHILIOD JURLIND 24f 10 AIBWLINS SIUE(H-2-42 U8 SEAD BUMOI0, UL

pung uojsuag au e

J_oﬂ\ﬁom LY Sy veuisd) 9 x.ﬁ.ﬁ&«



88

g
WRABEI SO LM BILBPICITE ;te__
SIE SPIOTD 10U SIBABIIZP O} oS

E::z:ﬁ..a?_ni.ﬁa-nﬁ

“sopdppugd uegseioid ejep pue mnmv

BB Y2 ISV} PUE RISGUBLL SATEE 818
oy exay, ‘wewena Buyseaidds ar
U LGS SUURYSE asolg AIUBpI
0} BB & PUE BRACAWE WEASR)
Bif UM BPUOSE 18qIUSLL SHILODSE
- luhu_.lm.m_l_.giﬁ 9_5';_.___8 1T e — _
oo O] :u_m 5 ep H“
weweacidus ejep B 3q ]-E:.-Eﬂs w Auoagny Preoq uziued pLE SSRILIKIOT UOREUE |
EBp Bupssyw o Aanb 100d PoURUIR| LE L A LD WSy BumpLE}e B oY RNy
== s Bl o BN, _ ,wmut..isluislz.ﬁaaxéﬁnlg
oGl i
PIoa8) 10} $8820.d PUR Eau.ﬂ_ i sesssaod _
apenbope UR a2uid Lk amey pue nnﬂun:_ _ ?ﬁ.ﬁﬂ( ¢ |DOUGD LTI pUB Eusiaﬂh:nﬁw _
@1k Asly 9e Euc| 32 10} spiaal ual L N 11 o sSRuBAISEYE BU} Ml A 1
n_Si Apayne Supayyuwpe .m.:._.+ . i Plnoys Auoyine Buysisujupe nsL i
E 1
ua__ﬁ 1ays & 2y} Bugae _52_ _ i
uoisuad [ea0) B JB By} Jafyo opet | UL §
AUOISEIP J0 BPI0021 PUB BUDMBNOSP | _ | Busemuwpy B UOMA 'UNM SuBnSE pus u_-_.__ i
pue sBugsaw preoq Uok _!_un;aguuv: + 2 o) 0y JapsiBe Hay B eaeyd uj
Jesnu o Swisaupe syl 1 .
SUORARSLES Ja SI02aI demy; _ Auoumy e
PUE £59Y) S{U0391 SIS @il 40 N0 [ s azydoidde yqEsa PUB BYE BlBmEA
PUB 0JU| SRUN JO MDY 8L, §081 0 8178, : PuB fjuep; o) sseooid & soeid U axsy
—Saproys Aeue Dulesupe ouL; 1 s Aocgne Susgmupe s |

___ Pinoys Auoye BlusyEuiupe. _ .

! (saqmd pau pue Eo@ﬁh
ssfueys |
ETER JSGUUIOUL LEYM UORELUD
paiepdn spjoid o} mefodiue
WIS Iy F6d U) DL BABISILG pue.

39jue feirtepe BuipnpL) pund!
m:Co EuEuoEcE PuR UOLEASLILIPE
pug
‘Swersés senbepa apnpu’

PINOYS AROiITE BulieysiuLLpe u_._._._

| PaInbe1 5 Ao Fuyasailpe st

sunpaaoid ajepdaldde ysuy wineus W X ) Sjnuas RWE] eorsd Ul BABY 0}
1

!__—m_?mu

] = {AgEnuue jes) 38) mynber jno Aues

I e — . . EuguEaihmEEsF
| Ay : z%snsuuz%ﬁ_.ﬁssm | . =1 jo Buncjucw repnSal __:e.
$ Bupmsiupupy ;o0 o AR e HOMM SEINIR) JBkEd LS eoeid U| Seinpeocid pue sstajod aARy(
| [ AUIOLGAE PUPEBIAPE BYsE | | ! __ pnous Auoyine Aupsisppupe sy |

“RyEidoidde oq AR Sy, D = |

|RLOBPPR SIS PR IN00G O} AR paaiunuwIs aq | i ‘ 4o IMyna B syowoid pus warizgetus

Apeypmy QoW &g ARLU PRIRY ISLM SUSRENYS ) RIGqUISL Jnogqe :n._.nEBE_o:i!_ ual i IRGLLIAL DRUR(0E SERINTAE.
Bupaisiuupy alep cyeiqe o yjym seendf | i - Y24 SUGNR LR S47) PURKRIRPAN g oy paysjand aq o} UBREWIOM|
#au ¢ dopasp 10 seesaoord Mapvel| | 4 RuGHREe 10} Msanbal AU 18R{SUND

| PREEA, —Proys Auogne Busmsuupr gLy |
i Ganie) ! ! H
i Aueuyny urewAed o wonere: L !.!.N.z:EEui ! SIRINODE PUR ARLAN LAk IWSLY O I._Bl u BEIUENY B,pIES) Loisuad g
; BuusIsIMUpY u.l!—n..%i.%uﬁo!u e i o aedoidwe Bugediogied aunbai, WU [EI0{ S JNOTE LDgeLLIC Yeaqnd.

_ Pinoys Auoyine Buussiunnpe ey | . Pinays fuowpgne Burermuwps ay) Pmeys duoune BupeUMIPE 0y |

3
— lo..rl;.lr - - o . ——raar’ - i i
_.a vl pue sup uo pred suogrquuanl ¢
ainsus o quawded ekopwa; 1 i
uE wpy o uE_B_:uE Apquow n.& Apfaini i Apaund myousq UL SENoED: w
Sua- L PUE ISqUIBL AURYDE B ba:ﬂ..- Jp@nbiun sse3ad Jue LU odde
1 : s__nzss.;_.nﬁnﬂusﬁ_w : ESnE.Ean_.sGsE_ I
Aoy Sumups s || : demy s Ay PR L s — - proys uopru peusand ey | |
i ' i uogengse’ w
L =ap iepial 0} j06fqns = wep i pue) _
£ w = | emnasa pue eleiduioo o suceinbay | 5 Agmucdsd) spreoq uosusd !
B ..2-._.:_& 1R Buxeay) pioosy su u peypads! 193] S upgien Buie) siegyerl oy _
R an_ﬁE_oE _uEn_uE 11} nE»EJ _. S seuobaen n_._u_onEuE-uwwEuu., _ PUE 30) SATEIUSERKIR! AU ‘8B preng
. dewy sunma o) sauepink ARSRoou . EIEP JEQISL SWSYDS 2L SINSUS, H uamuad [20) Sl Jo LHGUNLS 1) ouMy M
I o L papwaid oq pnous sekodwa] ¢ | . 8N Aone BuRiEUPE Syl t i ) opNfaLY I LOGEWICKS PIUSKIN B
| . | n
H
L ") 4

pyoe Auotyne BULESUWRR oy 1 '

— . e Ml YT A

T T T peupde SahiRl A T AR Sdey] Bup ISR T |

10 AlLS{I]BIM BU) ESUEEE PUE SRRy 1

Wewked Aguep o} 2oekd Ul seinpazoid _
PUB 38110d SARIIYS BIE BBl BINBLS

- pihoye &poyyme Supeiemupe syy | _

|

PUE WoAol 0y ajge 8q L3000 sep apcn E_.EE___ N
Bughpua pue g o dn “speinase, isa-s_EauiE._e.E& ;
) AR 1) BSOS 0} Piqe: _ FE00) 4R inoqe Ug EE:_#_E_ '
2q ysnu Apoyne Bupaysiinups vyl

janu Auaine Bupeeauipe eyl

e

BLuSagy ety iin) iy PRy esrrssnal] B4




89

.nﬂusnﬁ .-.%BDEE_B EEI“- _

i |
89 %Sﬁg__.:en:!uam_ i

e II.IIII-.'

" ooy \yw Acuoa pricys ) AEsiuoosie
pepond 8 uanguiogi u—u_._.s

uppuaye smeip ARjeudoxdkde g ainews

.EonEnE QDI TP 5 “
| IS g IoEoD SR SﬁEEu__
- ., pnays fuegne Supssanpe syl ”
]
_I syeudoidds emmuMm: _ _
Auiowpmy | 190 10
Fupapsauipy

§
|
: AP . pinous Awouyme o .
1 i - = (T
Pl '
|
1

. e

e e R }
1 abepm 1 sassas0md Jadopdue ayg ou) URED LIyuT pIpiand pus sjuewrepue i
| Aoy o Apouny |- 30urBlyeq @@ Se|EqRRLY ATBSSR0I

e ] sssanxd sincap uojsuad 9l o) _ * !ﬁ_._z_i!_ i
i
i
[ Bt pus Euby usiued soi F
m
_

3 Buneimuuipy €} BoNI0dRI 0L 1G FLGRYM B3408RN | _ Bupaisunupy | GLpIRd) PUR SSIUSARIOLD &) BINEULS 0} JUBAAJRI S JRL| UORRULICHY 3A03)
H & Ino Supsa 'Oc) Bydeeld & URUEU | . oy ssecoud syndmp &y sejet ANl 0} TMAO PLUR AINGUISW DI YDE I} _
ol PIOyS Aucipne Sudsisurpe By Ly . P _Pinown Auopgme Supsmmupe ¢ !c._  t LI Uompod @yaw suognba z._iona
5 — Sﬁnnn._n 1 ==
A Bugpicoas pus Bujodey .6_3 sapndsip |, 3Bk E__wnv \ suawainbes ﬁun_
Ea._us.: v 47 o J0 SoDRG B BRIUEWRL, | ! Ea_hwsqﬁﬁ 10y oawd ul URWeOuENs ayBydaidde o wnum Bugssly VOREULOM GWeLOSE |
B 10} ajgpsucdssu ucmad ¥ paRUED| u_i: : m By -_u;unEc slielas & paunse | | DISEG, LM BISGLIDWL WSS Sl n_
| _Pinoys fuoipne Buisysupe 8y 1 L { = soy Awoyme fuussnpeeyy | 1
| - e e i e PUSPRRRSE—. v -4
i — sEsesIL; gudadde -
£ fuewspaquig suasuag
' | | “sede}) snpacad uoReRass -

| kpagmy Ry r— ool S LOSOGR AU MY, |

1 ‘spapu uoheliioju] 0] palbal A,

' frmAEey m _ i Januw ueopde 8L, LORRILIOLY BUf - UKD | 181 pUB Hmﬁﬂﬂﬂsgﬂ.
8y IOEPNDB U Y - By Ui rapy

i B-E i ! oy sogcte J ot - WeweEs Weuss EnuLR de papinaid

sﬁﬁiussss!aai_ i | | RIR BOAY M RISqUSLE B JELE SINEUS

inoys fwoyne BULSSUALPE BUL,

!
o ) i mir.%gu.ha;%uh?‘.a“ —d o DOy Auawgna BulaisMLDE UL
us_m!z!_%__ i '
madopdwie eleyss ‘ !

§ eWaH|as 9L Ja uORENAIPS; i
B @) U1 peajosy| uomied Ale -5 m
H

__

m

!

UogeuLaN| Bfe) wepea Bu _._!:8_
Jpasa uoguad pi

"BARIE IF2 O} WRIISTR|S Wsueq _!E_w_

e epuioid af Auoigne BueTEUMPE :
w1y a1mbal suoneBal alwaus

preoq uaieuad Gy jo RISqWHL -
AR |

"un!i_._jE._
“SoUBDIND S aiebaY Suotaad AU
pus Buawsunbel [e8a] ey Jo BieME,
SpelY o4 M| 914 J0 sayteax Bupodau:
10} Aqieuodse; esouy jeu) poleat

o POy Auoyine BuIsNIUPE # 1)

i
E.ﬁunn..m,
uognposey syndeg elel| UB|

eveid U sey Auawpne Bupagsupups auL |

sty ) |ubai] fresili)



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C — Pensions Risk Register — August 2016

Pensions
R| S Risk
i|e Response;
i \rl Risk Causes (s) Consequences (s) Risk List of current Current Tolerate AT G Re;;::al :\‘::)e? Managed
; q Owner controls Risk Treat Additional Controls Score
R Score Terminate
ol e Transfer
Government changes
to end contracting out
legislation.
Contracting out ends Implement national
April 2016 and recommendations in a
between 2015 and timely way once they
2018 we need to
If we fail to reconcile . Overpaying Checking of HMRC are agreed
HRMC GMP data with reconcile our GMPs to pensions GMP data to identif M dat
n
P | the Pensions Secti the information held an H di atatol .en _I Y LGA liaising with s @ égﬁ @ |
e Pensions Section n n repan n r
e . ) by HM Revenue. From R anHowe any discrepancies | Treasury on GMP lan Howe ervice leve
1 data there is a risk of Reputation against our data 12 Treat I 6
n 2018 we take on reconciliation in order to
overpayment of o . .
S i responsibility for assist pension funds
Pensions Increase
GMPs so we need to
ensure we pay the Pensions to have
correct Pensions dedicated resource
Increase (e.g. no GMP working on this project
means we pay full PI
and if there should be
a GMP we pay less Pl).
Changes in legislation .
L Quarterly meetings
on the Firefighters .
. take place with the
pension scheme, . .
. . Fire Authorities to
Managing the Fire . . .
. ) . resolve issues Continue to monitor and
If we fail to meet the fighters pension
. . development
service requirements scheme changes and Reputati Membershio of th improvements to work
eputation embership of the
P of the three Fire the retained fire P lan Howe Midlands i P Offi processes guiding all an H Managed at
e idlands Fire Officer an Howe i
2 Authorities we may fighters buy back. . 6 Treat i > © 4 Service level
n . . . Potential loss of Group enables us to three Fire Authorities to
s | lose their business Only limited

knowledge in the
Section in this key
area.

business

identify and resolve
issues early

Resource on the team
increased

the same processes and
decisions

16



Draft SLA produced
that’s being
considered by the Fire
Authorities

A continuing increase
in Fund employers is

Late or inaccurate
pension benefits

Training provided for
new employers

Review the information
we request from
employers.

contribution rates.

future financial risk

artificially manage
employer contribution
rates

. L . to scheme
causing administrative members . )
. - ) . uidance notes
If we fail to receive pressure in the ded f Consider Pensions
. A . . rovided for
p | accurate and timely Pension Section. This Reputation P Treat helping calculate pay
data from employers | . . . employers . Managed at
e is in terms of receiving details for the Funds lan Howe g
n scheme members accurate and timel Appeals lan Howe 9 I | service level
. . u I . .
¢ | Pension benefits data from th Y Communication and smaller employers
: ata from these new . . )
could be incorrect or Greater Admin guide provided )
late employers who have o . Adapt the guide and
. . administrative to employers
little or no pension B R develop the SLA
time being spent
knowledge. on individual
calculations
Potentiall .
If ! d t blyt Th Receipt of
employer an reportable to The T
Ip v b P . contributions is
employee ensions h )
1 P .y i . monitored and late Late payers will be colin M d at
contributions are not | Error on the part of Regulator as late Colin Pratt ) . anageda
n . . payments are chased Treat reminded of their legal Pratt Service level
paid accurately and the scheme employer paymentis a : 8 o ervice leve
v . quickly responsibilities.
s | ontime breach of The
Pensions Act
Input into actuarial X .
. ) Actuarial assumptions
Reputation valuation, including .
i X need to include an
ensuring that actuarial
Significant i element of prudence,
. ) ignifican assumptions are .
If assets held by the Ineffective setting of .g o Chris P and Officers need to
. . financial impact on reasonable and the
| | Fund are ultimately employer contribution Tambini/ . . understand the long-
. - scheme employers manner in which R . Chri
n | insufficient to pay rates over many L term impact and risks ris Managed at
) . . due to the need . employer contribution 10 Treat . K . Tambini
vV | benefits due to consecutive actuarial Colin Pratt involved with taking ambini/ | cqrvice level
Lo . for large increases rates are set does not . )
S | individual members valuations . . short-term views to Colin
in employer bring imprudent Pratt

6



employer

deficit that has to
be met by the
Fund.

continues.

Reputation Officers and members Chris Managed at
Ineffective setting of X need to be aware of the Tambini/ service level
. Ensuring that asset . . . .
asset allocation Significant . o potential for different Colin and via
. allocation policy is set
If assets held by the strategy to take into financial impact on Chri bust] d that asset classes to produce Pratt Local
ris robustly and tha
| | Fund are ultimately account potential scheme employers Tambini/ h Vt th significantly different Pension
. - ) ambini changes to the ; )
n | insufficient to pay future investment due to the need X i R 10 Treat investment returns over Committee
investmen
Vv | benefits due to returns and the risks for large increases . . both the short-term and
o ) i Colin Pratt environment, and the
S | individual members associated with in employer . . the long-term, but also
L associated risks, are
achieving these contribution rates. ) accept that frequent
taken into account .
returns changes are likely to be
costly
Reputation
Significant Ensuring, as far as
If the sub-funds of financial impact on possible, that the
p Community employing bodies financial position of
Admission Bodies due to need for Community Admission i i
e R o . o Dialogue with the lan Managed at
were not monitored Changing financial large increases in lan Howe/ Bodies is understood. . 8
n I larl Howe/ i
. . ) . employers, particularly Service level
s | toensure thatthereis | position of both sub- employer On-going dialogue in the lead up to th
in the lead up to the
/ | the correct balance fund and the contribution rates, | Colin Pratt with them to ensure 10 Treat i P Coli
) setting of new employer olin
I | between risks to the employer which may that the correct L
n . ) contribution rates. Pratt
Fund and fair ultimately lead to balance between risks
v treatment of the insolvency and a and fair treatment
s

€6



This page is intentionally left blank



95

APPENDIX D

A Procedure for Reporting Breaches of
the Law to the Pensions Regulator

Leicestershire Pension Fund

Aug 2016



96

Introduction

In April 2015 the Pensions Regulator (the Regulator) published its Code of
Practice no 14 (the Code) Governance and administration of public service
pension schemes. This is not a statement of law of itself, but nonetheless it
carries weight.

There are many and various laws relating to the Local Government Pension
Scheme, with many and various people having a statutory duty to report
material breaches of the law to the Regulator. To assist, the Code states that
a procedure should be established to ensure that those with a responsibility to
make reports are able to meet their legal obligations. This document is that
procedure for the Leicestershire Pension fund, which relates to all of the
Fund’s areas of operation.

Much of the text herein is drawn from the Code itself. Where it has been, the
Regulator’s copyright applies.

Legal requirements

Certain people are required to report breaches of the law to the Regulator
where they have reasonable cause to believe that:

- a legal duty which is relevant to the administration of the scheme has not
been, or is not being, complied with and;

- the failure to comply is likely to be of material significance to the Regulator in
the exercise of any of its functions.

People who are subject to the reporting requirement (‘reporters’) for public
service pension schemes are:

- scheme managers;
- members of the local pension board;

- any person who is otherwise involved in the administration of the Fund (and
thus members of the pension board and all of the Fund’s officers);

- employers, and any participating employer who becomes aware of a breach
should consider their statutory duty to report, regardless of whether the
breach relates to, or affects, members who are its employees or those of
other employers;

- professional advisers including auditors, actuaries, legal advisers and fund
managers; and



10

11

97

- any person who is otherwise involved in advising the managers of the
scheme in relation to the scheme.

Reasonable cause

Having ‘reasonable cause’ to believe that a breach has occurred means more
than merely having a suspicion that cannot be substantiated.

Reporters should ensure that where a breach is suspected, they carry out
checks to establish whether or not a breach has in fact occurred. For
example, a member of a funded pension scheme may allege that there has
been a misappropriation of scheme assets where they have seen in the
annual accounts that the scheme’s assets have fallen. However, the real
reason for the apparent loss in value of scheme assets may be due to the
behaviour of the stock market over the period. This would mean that there is
not reasonable cause to believe that a breach has occurred.

Where the reporter does not know the facts or events around the suspected
breach, it will usually be appropriate to consult the appropriate Officer
regarding what has happened. It would not be appropriate to check in cases
of theft, suspected fraud or other serious offences where discussions might
alert those implicated or impede the actions of the police or a regulatory
authority. Under these circumstances the reporter should alert the Regulator
without delay.

If the reporter is unclear about the relevant legal provision, they should clarify
their understanding of the law to the extent necessary to form a view.

In establishing whether there is reasonable cause to believe that a breach has
occurred, it is not necessary for a reporter to gather all the evidence which the
Regulator may require before taking legal action. A delay in reporting may
exacerbate or increase the risk of the breach.

Material significance

In deciding whether a breach is likely to be of material significance to the
Regulator, it would be advisable for the reporter to consider the:

- cause of the breach;
- effect of the breach;
- reaction to the breach; and

- the wider implications of the breach.



12

13

14

15

16

98

When deciding whether to report, those responsible should consider these
points together. Reporters should take into account expert or professional
advice, where appropriate, when deciding whether the breach is likely to be of
material significance to the Regulator.

The breach is likely to be of material significance to the Regulator where it
was caused by:

- dishonesty;

- poor governance or administration;

- slow or inappropriate decision making practices;

- incomplete or inaccurate advice; or

- acting (or failing to act) in deliberate contravention of the law.

When deciding whether a breach is of material significance, those responsible
should consider other reported and unreported breaches of which they are
aware. However, historical information should be considered with care,
particularly if changes have been made to address previously identified
problems.

A breach will not normally be materially significant if it has arisen from an
isolated incident, for example resulting from teething problems with a new
system or procedure, or from an unusual or unpredictable combination of
circumstances. But in such a situation, it is also important to consider other
aspects of the breach such as the effect it has had and to be aware that
persistent isolated breaches could be indicative of wider scheme issues.

Effect of the breach

Reporters need to consider the effects of any breach, but with the Regulator’s
role in relation to public service pension schemes and its statutory objectives
in mind, the following matters in particular should be considered likely to be of
material significance to the Regulator:

- Local Board members not having the appropriate degree of knowledge and
understanding, which may result in the Board not fulfilling its role, the Fund
not being properly governed and administered and/or the Pension Board
breaching other legal requirements;

- Local Board members having a conflict of interest, which may result in them
being prejudiced in the way that they carry out their role, ineffective
governance and administration of the scheme and/or the Pension Board
breaching legal requirements;

- adequate internal controls not being established and operated, which may
lead to the Fund not being run in accordance with the Scheme’s Regulations

4



17

18

19

20

99

and other legal requirements, risks not being properly identified and managed
and/or the right money not being paid to or by the Fund at the right time;

- accurate information about benefits and Scheme administration not being
provided to Scheme members and others, which may result in members not
being able to effectively plan or make decisions about their retirement;

- appropriate records not being maintained, which may result in member
benefits being calculated incorrectly and/or not being paid to the right person
at the right time;

- anyone involved with the administration or management of the Fund
misappropriating any of its assets, or being likely to do so, which may result in
assets not being safeguarded; and

- any other breach which may result in the Fund being poorly governed,
managed or administered.

Reporters need to take care to consider the effects of the breach, including
any other breaches occurring as a result of the initial breach and the effects of
those resulting breaches.

Reaction to the breach

Where prompt and effective action is taken to investigate and correct the
breach and its causes and, where appropriate, notify any affected members,
the Regulator will not normally consider this to be materially significant.

A breach is likely to be of concern and material significance to the Regulator
where a breach has been identified and those involved:

- do not take prompt and effective action to remedy the breach and identify
and tackle its cause in order to minimise risk of recurrence;

- are not pursuing corrective action to a proper conclusion;

- fail to notify affected scheme members where it would have been
appropriate to do so.

Wider implications of the breach

Reporters should consider the wider implications of a breach when they
assess which breaches are likely to be materially significant to the Regulator.
For example, a breach is likely to be of material significance where the fact
that the breach has occurred makes it appear more likely that other breaches
will emerge in the future. This may be due to the scheme manager or pension
board members having a lack of appropriate knowledge and understanding to
fulfil their responsibilities or where other pension schemes may be affected.

5



100

For instance, public service pension schemes administered by the same
organisation may be detrimentally affected where a system failure has caused
the breach to occur.

Examples of breaches

21

22

23

24

Example 1

An employer is late in paying over employee and employer contributions, and
so late that it is in breach of the statutory period for making such payments. It
is contacted by officers from the administering authority, it immediately pays
the moneys that are overdue, and it improves its procedures so that in future
contributions are paid over on time. In this instance there has been a breach
but members have not been adversely affected and the employer has put its
house in order regarding future payments. The breach is therefore not
material to the Regulator and need not be reported.

Example 2

An employer is late in paying over employee and employer contributions, and
so late that it is in breach of the statutory period for making such payments. It
is also late in paying AVCs to the Prudential. It is contacted by officers from
the administering authority, and it eventually pays the moneys that are
overdue, including AVCs to the Prudential. This has happened before, with
there being no evidence that the employer is putting its house in order. In this
instance there has been a breach that is relevant to the Regulator, in part
because of the employer's repeated failures, and also because those
members paying AVCs will typically be adversely affected by the delay in the
investing of their AVCs.

Example 3

A pension overpayment is discovered and thus the administering authority
has failed to pay the right amounts to the right person at the right time. A
breach has therefore occurred. The overpayment is however for a modest
amount and the pensioner could not have known that (s)he was being
overpaid. The overpayment is therefore waived. In this case there is no need
to report the breach as it is not material.

Example 4

Members of the Local Pension Board, the Local Pension Committee and key
Officers have a responsibility to declare if they have a material interest in any
decision that they are involved in. This may, for example, be a family member

6



101

that is employed by an investment management firm that is being considered
for appointment or an individual investment decision that may have potential
benefit for themselves or a close friend/family member. This interest should
be declared prior to any decision being taken, and the interested party should
be excluded from the decision.

If it is subsequently found that a notification of material interest was not made,
this would be considered a material breach and should be reported to the
Regulator. Non-disclosure of the material interest is also likely to lead to
disciplinary action against the individual.

Submitting a report to the Regulator

25

26

27

28

29

Before you submit a report you should obtain clarification of the law around
the suspected breach. You should contact the Pensions Manager in the first
instance.

The Pensions Manager will consider whether the Regulator would regard the
breach as being material. (S)he will also clarifying any facts, if required. If the
case requires input from others, including a Legal view, (s)he will seek advice,
as required.

Some matters could be urgent, if for example a fraud is imminent, whilst
others will be less so. Non-urgent but material breaches should be reported to
the Regulator within 30 working days of them being confirmed, and in the
same time breaches that are not material should be recorded (see later).
Some breaches could be so serious that they must always be reported, for
example a theft of funds by anyone involved with the administration or
management of the Fund. It is difficult to be definitive about what constitutes a
breach that must always be reported, but one test is: might it reasonably lead
to a criminal prosecution or a serious loss in public confidence?

Any report that is made (which must be in writing and made as soon as
reasonable practicable) should be dated and include as a minimum:

- full name of the Fund;

- description of the breach or breaches;

- any relevant dates;

- name of the employer or scheme manager (where known);
- name, position and contact details of the reporter; and

- role of the reporter in relation to the Fund.



30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

102

Additional information that would help the Regulator includes:

- the reason the breach is thought to be of material significance to the
Regulator;

- the address of the Fund,;
- the pension scheme’s registry number (if available); and
- whether the concern has been reported before.

Reporters should mark urgent reports as such and draw attention to matters
they consider particularly serious. They can precede a written report with a
telephone call, if appropriate.

Reporters should ensure they receive an acknowledgement for any report
they send to the Regulator. Only when they receive an acknowledgement can
the reporter be confident that the Regulator has received their report.

The Regulator will acknowledge all reports within five working days of receipt,
however it will not generally keep a reporter informed of the steps taken in
response to a report of a breach as there are restrictions on the information it
can disclose.

The reporter should provide further information or reports of further breaches
if this may help the Regulator to exercise its functions. The Regulator may
make contact to request further information.

Breaches should be reported as soon as reasonably practicable, which will
depend on the circumstances. In particular, the time taken should reflect the
seriousness of the suspected breach.

In cases of immediate risk to the Fund, for instance, where there is any
indication of dishonesty, the Regulator does not expect reporters to seek an
explanation or to assess the effectiveness of proposed remedies. They should
only make such immediate checks as are necessary. The more serious the
potential breach and its consequences, the more urgently reporters should
make these necessary checks. In cases of potential dishonesty the reporter
should avoid, where possible, checks which might alert those implicated. In
serious cases, reporters should use the quickest means possible to alert the
Regulator to the breach.

Recording breaches that have not been reported to the Regulator

Breaches that are found not to be material to the Regulator must still be
recorded. This is so that if similar breaches continue, then they become
material. Recording all breaches also highlights where improvements are
required, to try and prevent similar breaches.



38

39

40

41

42

103

Breaches that are not being reported should be recorded: (the breaches log is
included at the end of the document).

Whistleblowing protection and confidentiality

The Pensions Act 2004 makes clear that the statutory duty to report overrides
any other duties a reporter may have such as confidentiality and that any such
duty is not breached by making a report. The Regulator understands the
potential impact of a report on relationships, for example, between an
employee and their employer.

The statutory duty to report does not, however, override ‘legal privilege. This
means that oral and written communications between a professional legal
adviser and their client, or a person representing that client, while obtaining
legal advice, do not have to be disclosed. Where appropriate a legal adviser
will be able to provide further information on this.

The Regulator will do its best to protect a reporter’s identity (if desired) and
will not disclose the information except where lawfully required to do so. It will
take all reasonable steps to maintain confidentiality, but it cannot give any
categorical assurances as the circumstances may mean that disclosure of the
reporter’s identity becomes unavoidable in law. This includes circumstances
where the regulator is ordered by a court to disclose it.

The Employment Rights Act 1996 (ERA) provides protection for employees
making a whistleblowing disclosure to the regulator. Consequently, where
individuals employed by firms or another organisation having a statutory duty
to report disagree with a decision not to report to the regulator, they may have
protection under the ERA if they make an individual report in good faith. The
Regulator expects such individual reports to be rare and confined to the most
serious cases.



104

Leicestershire Local Government Pension Scheme - Breaches Log

Number | Breach Material | Notes
Yes/No
1 Late payment of contributions from a | No, but | Monitory value in
new administering authority due to | TPR Fund terms is low.
late completion of the admission | has
agreement and bond. been Members have been
made informed  of  the
aware position throughout.
of the
situation | The Fund has

requested a review of
the new employer
process within the
reply to DCLG’s
regulation
consultation.

ROOINO|0A~WIN

There has only been one breach in the period 1 April 2015 to 31 August 2016
as detailed in the table above.

10




APPE N DIX E LOCAL PENSION BOARD — TRAINING NEEDS ANALYSIS (30 June 2016)

Topic Good level of Date Report or
Knowledge & Presentation/Training Provided
Understanding

Background to Legislative Framework

Key provisions of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 v Training 14/12/15

Overview of roles and responsibilities associated with the Local Government Pension v Training 14/12/15, Training 16/6/16

Scheme

Roles and Responsibilities of the Local Pension Board

Assisting the Scheme Manager — governance and administration v Report 19/6/15, Training 9/12/15

Potential conflicts of interest v Each meeting

Reporting of breaches v Report 9/10/15

Knowledge and understanding v Report 14/12/15, Training 16/6/16
(details of the LGA Trustee training
distributed)

Roles and Responsibilities of the Scheme Manager

Pension Regulations v" (some) Presentation 19/6/15, Training
8/2/2016

Legislation v" (some) Training 9/12/15

Calculation and payment of benefits v Presentation 19/6/15 (further
training agreed), Training 8/2/2016

Annual Benefit Statements v Report 9/10/15, Report 14/12/15

Discretions

Internal dispute resolution (stage 1,2, TPAS, Ombudsman) v Training 16/6/16

Record keeping

Internal controls and risk management v Report 9/10/15

Reporting of breaches v Report 9/10/15

Administration of Local Pension Board v Training 8/2/16

Managing potential conflicts of interest 4 Training 8/2/16

GOT




Admission Bodies — Bonds/Guarantees

Discussed at the Local Pension Board
meeting 16/6/16

Topic

Good level of
Knowledge &
Understanding

Date Report or Training Provided

Roles and Responsibilities of the Scheme Employers

Providing pension information to the administering authority 4 Report 4/3/2016, Report 16/6/2016

Year-end 4 Report 4/3/2016, Report 16/6/2016

Automatic enrolment

Deduction and payment of contributions

Internal dispute resolution (stage 1) 4 Training 16/6/16 (further training
required in roles and responsibilities
for scheme employers)

Roles of Advisers and Other Key Persons / Bodies

Officers of the Authority 4 Training 16/6/16

Auditors 4 Training 16/6/16

National Scheme Advisory Board 4 Training 16/6/16

Department for Communities and Local Government 4 Training 16/6/16

Local Government Association v Training 16/6/16

Pensions Advisory Service 4 Training 16/6/16

Pensions Ombudsman 4 Training 16/6/16

The Pensions Regulator v Report 9/10/15, Training 9/12/15,
Training 16/6/16

Investments

Actuarial Valuation v Pension Board Meeting — to hear
from the Pension Fund Actuary
26/2/2016

Different Asset Classes v Training 14/12/15

90T



Decision-making process Training 14/12/15

Risk vs. Reward Training 14/12/15

AN N

LGPS Asset Pooling Training 14/12/15

Summary of Events/Training

19 June 2015 - Reports

Role of the Local Board

External audit plan

Internal audit arrangements

Quarterly administration report (introduction)

19 June — Presentation

Introduction to Pensions

9 October 2015 — Reports

Quarterly administration report (annual benefit statements, partnership working)
Managing pension section workloads

Joint administration and communication strategy

Reporting breaches of the law to The Pension Regulator

Risk register

13 November 2015 — Pension Board Reports

Invited to attend the Pension Board (investments)

L0T



9 December 2015 — Training

Governance regulations
TPR

Statutory deadlines
Pension taxation

14 December 2015 — Reports and Training

Quarterly administration report (exit cap, GMP rec and valuation)

Annual benefit statements

Board members — knowledge and understanding

Local pension board and Local pension committee — key roles and responsibilities (training item)

8 February 2016

Administration of Local Pension Boards, Managing potential conflicts of interest (training item — M Hand)
State scheme changes, GMPs and GMP reconciliation

26 February 2016

Invited to attend the Pension Board — Pension Fund Actuary, Year-end and the Actuarial Valuation
16 June 2016
Roles of advisers and other key persons/bodies (including the Pension Ombudsman — IDRPs)

LGA Trustee Training event details distributed (3 days split over Oct, Nov, Dec 2016)

IH 28/06/2016

80T



109 Agenda Item 9

H Leicestershire
County Council

LOCAL PENSION BOARD

3 OCTOBER 2016

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES

REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION BODY STATUS

Purpose of the Report

To update the Board about a number of staff transfers to Chartwells (part of
the Compass Group UK and Ireland).

Background

If an employer in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) outsources
its services to a private company the new employer has to protect the pension
benefits of the employed people that transfer. To do so, the new employer has
to either; offer a broadly comparable pension arrangement or apply for
admission body status in the Leicestershire Fund.

Most private companies do not offer a broadly comparable pension scheme
so apply for admission body status.

There are a number of requirements that must be completed to become an
admission body in the Leicestershire Pension Fund; including completion of
an admission agreement, arranging a guarantor and/or setting up a bond and
having any actuarial work completed by the Funds Actuary. This is standard
practise and all legal issues are expected to be complete before the transfer
of staff can take place.

As detailed in reports considered by the Local Pension Board in June 2016
and July 2016, Chartwells who are part of the Compass Group UK and
Ireland, had taken over four separate catering contracts from various Schools
and Academies in the Leicestershire Fund. The staff had already moved over
to Chartwells without the admission agreement and bonds in place in three of
the four cases.

Following the reports to the Local Pension Board the issue was escalated with
Governors, senior management and the staff affected.

Following escalation, the Pension Section has now received fully completed
admission agreements and bonds covering the previously outstanding areas.
The pensionable service has been backdated for all the staff that transferred,



110

so they all now have continuous pensionable service from the point they left
their previous employer and moved over to Chartwells. All the staff have been
informed in writing.

Whilst the issue is now resolved for these transfer, The Director of Finance
and Pensions Manager are still of the opinion that the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations require change to ensure that an admission
agreement and guarantor/bond should be signed by all parties before staff
can transfer over to a new employer. This would negate any future pension
risk, should anything happen to the staff before the agreement is in place. The
Pension Manager has replied accordingly to The Department of Communities
and Local Government’s consultation exercise detailing this point. When the
final regulations are published the Board will be informed.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board notes the report.

Equalities and Human Rights Implications

None specific

Officers to Contact

lan Howe — Pensions Manager Tel. (0116) 305 6945
Chris Tambini — Director of Finance Tel. (0116) 305 6199



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2016.
	6 Risk Management and Internal Controls.
	7 Pension Fund Administration - April to June 2016 Quarter.
	AppENDIX B - Admin Q report - Reply to DCLG Consultation July 2016v2

	8 Pension Fund Governance and Administration.
	APPENDIX A - Governance TPR Code of Practice 14
	Code of practice no. 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes
	Contents
	Introduction
	Status of codes of practice
	This code of practice
	At whom is this code directed?
	Terms used in this code
	How to use this code
	Northern Ireland

	Governing your scheme
	Knowledge and understanding required by pension board members
	Legal requirements
	Practical guidance
	Areas of knowledge and understanding required
	Degree of knowledge and understanding required
	Acquiring, reviewing and updating knowledge and understanding
	Demonstrating knowledge and understanding


	Conflicts of interest and representation
	Legal requirements
	Practical guidance
	A three-stage approach to managing potential conflicts of interest
	Identifying potential conflicts
	Monitoring potential conflicts
	Managing potential conflicts
	Examples of conflicts of interest

	Representation on pension boards

	Publishing information about schemes
	Legal requirements
	Practical guidance
	Publication of pension board information

	Other legal requirements


	Managing risks
	Internal controls
	Legal requirements
	Practical guidance
	Identifying risks
	Evaluating risks and establishing adequate internal controls
	Managing risks by operating internal controls
	Monitoring controls effectively
	Outsourcing services



	Administration
	Scheme record-keeping
	Legal requirements
	Practical guidance
	Records of member information
	Records of transactions
	Records of pension board meetings and decisions
	Retention of scheme records
	Ongoing monitoring of data
	Data review exercise
	Data improvement plan
	Reconciliation of member records
	Data protection and internal controls

	Other legal requirements

	Maintaining contributions
	Legal requirements
	Practical guidance
	Developing a record for monitoring the payment of contributions
	Monitoring the payment of contributions
	Managing overdue contributions
	Reporting payment failures which are likely to be of material significance to the regulator


	Providing information to members
	Legal requirements
	Benefit statements
	For active members of DB schemes under the 2013 Act
	For active, deferred or pension credit members of any DB public service pension scheme under the Disclosure Regulations 2013
	For members of a DC public service pension scheme under the Disclosure Regulations 2013

	Other information about scheme administration
	Who is entitled to information
	When basic scheme information must be provided
	What information must be disclosed on request
	How benefit statements and other information must be provided

	Practical guidance
	Other legal requirements


	Resolving issues
	Internal dispute resolution
	Legal requirements
	Practical guidance
	When applications should be submitted
	When decisions should be taken
	When applicants should be informed of a decision
	Implementing the procedure and processes


	Reporting breaches of the law
	Legal requirements
	Practical guidance
	Implementing adequate procedures
	Judging whether a breach must be reported
	Judging whether there is ‘reasonable cause’
	Judging what is of ‘material significance’ to the regulator
	Cause of the breach
	Effect of the breach
	Reaction to the breach
	Wider implications of the breach

	Submitting a report to the regulator
	Whistleblowing protection and confidentiality



	Appendix
	How to contact us


	APPENDIX B - Governance Scorecard 30082016
	Appendix C - Joint Risk Register August 2016 F
	Appendix D - Governance Reporting Breaches of the Law to TPR F
	APPENDIX E - Governance Training Needs Analysis Log June 2016

	9 Requests for Admission Body Status



